A REGULAR MEETING
| Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, February 24, 2015
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: 02-20-15
1131 Hastings Street 4:00 p.m.
Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940




Light and Power Board 2 February 24, 2015
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
together to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for fidl discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

.
None,

3. Unfinished Business

a. Public Hearing regarding (p. 4):

¢ Telecommunications Rate Increase
¢ Proposed Metal Melting Primary Service Rate

The purpose of this public hearing is to allow the public an opportunity to express, and
the opportunity for the Board to consider, the public’s support, opposition or general
comments regarding this matter. To preserve the written record, members of the public
are asked to state whether they are in support or opposition of this matter or whether they
are expressing general comments. After such statement, the public is welcome to
continue to elaborate on the matter.

b. Consideration of Strategic Plan — 2015 adoption. (p. 10) (Arends)

4, New Business

a, Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 10, 2015. (p. 38)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Utility Rate Analysis Report. (Myers-Beman) (p. 40)




Light and Power Board 3 February 24, 2015
Regular Meeting

2. Review of 2015-16 proposed Electric Utility Fund Budget. (Arends/Myers-
Beman) (p. 45)

c. From Board.
7. Public Comment

/st




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2015

1. 1810

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
100 Y Eiﬂ__s_j
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller K‘Mb"
Date: February 17, 2015
Subject: Approval of Rate Increases

Attached you will find the proposed tariff sheets for the Telecommunications Rate and the new proposed
Metal and Heat Treating Primary Service Rate (“MHTPSR”™).

The Telecommunications Rate is proposing increasing the rate $2.40 from $10.00 to $12.40 per pole.
The new rate was calculated utilizing APPA’s pole attachment tariff revenue calculation, which is used
among many municipalities across the nation. The effective date of this rate will be March 1, 2015.

The MHTPSR rate is proposed to meet the Board’s overall strategic objective of providing competitive
rates to its customers. This rate was created to provide a competitive edge for our qualifying customer
with similar entities within the State of Michigan on the Consumer’s Energy Metal Melting Pilot Rate.
Staff is suggesting an effective date of July 1, 2014 to coincide with the last rate increase.

Before the rates are approved, the City Charter requires a public hearing and public notice. Public
notice was provided through an advertisement in the Traverse City Record Eagle and it was posted on
the TCL&P website.  After the public hearing is held, if the Board concurs with implementing the
rates, the following motions would be appropriate:

MOVED BY s SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE APPROVAL OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
RATE EFFECTIVE MARCH 1, 2015.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE APPROVAL OF THE METAL AND HEAT
TREATING PRIMARY SERVICE RATE EFFECTIVE RETROACTIVELY AS OF JULY i,
2014.




City of Traverse City
Light and Power Department
Effective:

TELECOMMUNICATIONS RATE

{Rate "TC'")

Availability:

Available to customers, on an individually-negotiated basis, other than public utilities located
within the Department’s existing Service Area. This rate is offered at the discretion of the Light
and Power Board and may not be available if the Board determines, in any particular case, that it
is not in the public interest to do so. A signed Agreement is required, which describes terms and
conditions of service to which this rate applies.

Nature of Service:

Attachments to the Department’s poles must conform to applicable federal, state, and local
electrical code requirements as well as Department’s standards — particularly with conformance
to separation of services. The Department reserves the right to remove attachments at any time,
without notice, if removal is required for safety or emergency reasons. The Department will not
be liable for damage to telecommunications facilities. If any such damage should occur,
customer must pay for replacement, relocation, or repair.

Rates and Charges:

One time license agreement fee: $360.00
Permit application fee $50.00
Annual Pole Attachment Fee: $12.40/pole

The Annual Pole Attachment Fee shall be adjusted annually by any change in the Index known
as “United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index — All Urban Consumers,
base period 1982-84 — 100, (CPI-U),” herein referred to as the “Index.”

Any unauthorized attachment penalty fee will be five times the annual attachment fee, per
occurrence.

Failure to timely transfer, abandon or remove facilities or improperly assign penalty will be /5"
the annual attachment fee per day, per pole, first thirty (30) days; after the initial thirty (30) days
the penalty shall be equal to the annual attachment fee per day, per pole.

Whenever this Agreement requires Licensee to pay for work done or contracted by Utility, the
charge for such work shall include reasonable material, labor, engineering, administrative and
applicable overhead costs. If Licensce was required to perform work and fails to perform such
work, necessitating completion of the work by Utility, Utility may charge an additional ten
percent (10%) of its costs or assess the penalty specified above.




Due Date:

Payment of the Applicable Annual Rates shall be due no later than July 31 of each year for the
previous rental period. The initial annual rental period shall commence upon the execution of
this Agreement and conclude on June 30 of the next year and each subsequent annual rental
period commence on the following July 1 and conclude on June 30 of the subsequent year.

The due date for billings will be thirty (30) days after the billing is mailed. A late charge of 1%
per month compounded for any delinquent payments.




City of Traverse City
Light and Power Department
Effective:

METAL AND HEAT TREATING PRIMARY SERVICE

(Rate "MM")

Availability:
Open to any customer who provides metal melting and heat treating services and is desiring

primary voltage service for general use where the billing demand is 500 kW or more. This rate
is not available for street lighting service or for resale purposes,

Nature of Service:

Alternating current, 60 hertz, single phase or three phase, the particular nature of the voltage in
each case to be determined by the Department.

Where service is supplies at a nominal voltage of 15,000 volts or less, the customer shall furnish,
install and maintain all necessary transforming, controlling and protective equipment.

Beginning July 1, 2014 any new customers must purchase and retain ownership of all necessary
transforming, controlling and protective equipment, and, install and maintain this cquipment at
their expense. The customer is responsible for all costs and liability associated with the
transforming, controlling and protective equipment.

Where the Departiment elects to measure the service at a nominal voltage of less than 2,400 volts,
3% will be added for billing purposes to the demand and energy measurements thus made.

Monthly Rate:

Customer Charge: $40.00 per meter per month, plus

Capacity Charge: $8.48 per kW of the highest on-peak billing demand
for the past twelve months

Energy Charge: 6.4¢ per kWh for all kWh consumed dwring the on-

peak period, November through May.

6.7¢ per kW for all kWh consumed during the on-peak
period, June through October

5.0¢ per kWh for all kWh consumed during the off-
peak period.

Power Service Cost Recovery:

This rate is subject to the Department’s Power Service Cost Recovery,




Metal Melting Primary Service (Rate”MM?”), cont.

High Load Factor Credit:

Monthly credits will be given to high load factor customers as follows:

Load Factor % Credit on Total Billed Amount

90%-100% 5%
80% - 89% 4%
70% - 79% 3%

Minimum Charge:

The capacity charge included in the rate.

Due Date:

The due date of the customer’s bill will be shown on the bill and will be at least twenty-one (21)
days. Payments received after the due date are considered late, and a penalty charge of 2% shall
be imposed as a one-time charge.

On-Peak Billing Demand:

The on-peak billing demand shall be the kilowatts (kW) supplied during the 30-minute period of
maximum use during on-peak hours during the month, per schedule below.

Schedule of On-Peak, Off-Peak and Intermediate-Peak Hours

The following schedule shall apply Monday through Friday (except holidays designated by the
Department). Weekends and holidays are off-peak.

On-Peak Hours: | 10:00 am. |to | 5:00 p.m.
Off-Peak Hours: | 5:00 p.m. to | 10:00 a.m,

Holidays designated by the Department

The following are designated as holidays by the Department:
New Year’s Day Independence Day  Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Labor Day Christmas Day

Adjustment for Power Factor:

This rate requires a determination of the average power factor maintained by the cusiomer during
the billing period. Such average power factor will be determined through metering of lagging
kilovar hours and kilowatt hours during the billing period. The calculated ratio of lagging
kilovar hours to kilowatt hours will then be converted to the average power factor for the billing




Metal Melting Primary Service (Rate”MM?”), cont.

period by using the appropriate conversion factor, Whenever the average power factor during
the billing period is above 0.899 or below 0.800, the capacity charge will be adjusted as follows:

a. If the average power factor during the billing period is 0.900 or higher, the capacity
charge will be reduced by 2%. This credit shall not in any case be used to reduce the
prescribed minimum charge.

b. If the average power factor during the billing period is less than 0.800, the capacity
charge will be increased by the ratio that 0.800 bears to the customer’s average power
factor during the billing period.




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board @
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: February 18, 2015

Subject: Consideration of Adopting Strategic Plan

Included in your packet is the proposed TCL&P Strategic Plan - 2015 (“Plan”) for your
consideration of adoption. Over the past few meetings staft has reported on last year’s Plan
objectives and progress, created new objectives for the 2015 Plan and sought and received
Board input.

Recognizing that times change rapidly in the electric utility industry due to legislative issues,
fechnology, and customer needs and expectations, the proposed Plan allows for modifications
at any given time to address those changes and keep the utility moving in a forward direction.

TCL&P is an important part of the community that helps make Traverse City such a great
place to live, work, and play. As exemplified in the Plan, the Board, staff and employees of
the utility are focused on maintaining and improving the public power utility’s significance to
the community by adding value to the city, its residents, and all customers.

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the Plan as presented. If after Board discussion you
agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY )

THAT THE TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER STRATEGIC PLAN - 2015 BE
ADOPTED AS PRESENTED.

10




« TRAVERSE CITY
(&) LIGHT & POWER

L Investing Our Energy In You

Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Adopted: January 28, 2014 Revised: February 24, 2015




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

— -
Investing Our Energy In You

EST. 19121
Lo S

Introduction from the Executive Director

After successfully serving the City and surrounding areas for 103 years, the Board of Traverse City Light
& Power (“TCL&P”) embarked on developing a new Strategic Plan (“Plan”) that could challenge the
public power utility to exceed customer expectations while meeting the ever changing challenges of the
electric utility industry. Safety, high reliability, low rates, transparency, and exceptional customer
service and communications are among the core values of the utility. This Plan was created with these
basic core values always in mind.

The purpose of the Plan is to serve as a guiding document of the Board and utility staff and to support
the vision and mission of the utility by achieving goals and objectives that enhance the value of the
utility to its owners and the community it serves.

This Plan for TCL&P is the result of a very intense planning process facilitated by professional industry
experts and the dedicated efforts of the Board, staff, and employees.

Going forward, the Plan provides a blueprint for strategic planning and goal setting into the future.
Quarterly, the utility staff will report to the Board on its progress toward specific goals identified in the
Plan. On an annual basis, staff and the Board will update the Plan to meet changes in the industry,
economy, and to meet changes in customer needs and expectations. This annual review, as is required
in the Strategic Plan Board policy, will enable the Plan to remain a relevant guiding document for TCL&P
in this ever-changing utility industry.

A

Timothy J. Arends
Executive Director

<“Reach understanding &
allgnment around
Exteal Fivitonment

 Create Integrated plan
of strategles

; Development
Discovery

Prioritize those O
strategies

* Bulld specific goals
_ Aodactions

Page 2 of 27




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Table of Contents

1. Understanding Traverse City Light & Power

1oL HSHONRN 1roeno oo siisinicion oo osonsiensns 590 s 05kest 4 absi 5o s sasam i M ST RV V(b s s Page 4
1.2 Clirrent TCL&P Power Supply Makeup s Page 8
1,3 GOVEFIVATIER 1opnonnss snrenomsnssmarssatoss i s sois sebocsin iss s p L i Lo e H RT SR e Page 10
1.8 CUBEOIIEE BASE ..verusnsrrsnssasesammsnssisls i i G ooty BB M TSV IR Page 10
BB BATES coumrumssmnssssensnmmmsnsvienrasssunmmansnns snnsmssssnns e SOEE0AR G0 0T Ao i R Ao T RS A T s Page 11
1.6 EIRGINCIAL HEBAIN .coxmmmmomssnmsrmneammmssnsasasnsrsnssnnssbsbshsii s s e s s soaiss Page 13
2. Vision and Mission Statements
2.1 ViSiON STAtEMENT ..iivviieerierrie e rrerreerrcrs s eesnesies s sorsssasssrs ssssss e sresresssasnnsnsns sansssasans Page 14
2.2 MISSION STATEMEINT wovcvreeerrirreere e sieererer e sie s s e es e s r s e e s e s e e sa sn e Page 14
3. Strategic Issues
5.1 Fivanicial Stabillty ususmsasnmasssimmmmosmmossvasrrsssmsmssasssemismms Page 15
3,2 POWET SUPPIY STEAtERY iicvvismsivuissnssssmsesiuisissnssmmsrnssassosssinsss ssssssssassstsassnevenssseassasss Page 17
3.3 System Reliability & Power QUality ......ccuicvsmismmmsimmsmmsinsmmniesssesmenensssssnsons Page 19
B 0% TCIINOUOBY e nrnnoenanas s iasssosssiossmssssness 505955150 o BSOS s SO SRR ARSI 3o Page 21
3.5 High Quality WOIKFOICE ....ossrsssossissisisissisivsssimsismmnesmmsssasisasinisasessasnussssiasivesssisoss Page 23
3.6 CUSTOTARE SATISTACEION, wersrnnrassnnerrsnsonsoansnnens sssiusses sasiaisvs e vo i sivse s s iR v i Page 25
B 00 Y g oL L0 13 ) 1 EP TP OO A PP PP Page 27
Page 3 of 27

13




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

1. Understanding Traverse City Light & Power
1.1 History

In the early 1900’s, as demand for electric power grew in Traverse City, competition to meet this
demand grew as well. The Queen City Light & Power Company was in operation only a few short years
as a direct competitor to Boardman River Electric Light and Power Company. In September 1912, the
City of Traverse City purchased Queen City Light & Power for $150,000. The purchase included sixty
acres at Keystone and the property and flowage rights seven miles upstream including the Brown Bridge
Dam area and pond. The new power company was known as the Traverse City Municipal Light and
Power Department, known today as Traverse City Light & Power (“TCL&P") Department.

In the early days of TCL&P working conditions were
challenging. Linemen camped in tents and worked with
teams of horses to haul poles into place. Holes were dug
by hand using picks and shovels. Linemen had to
manually combat the elements, especially in winter.

Attracting new commerce to the Grand Traverse area
required reliable and plentiful electric power. In 1920,
the Traverse City Chamber of Commerce had to pause
its efforts in pursuing new businesses because of the
lack of such power. Fortunately, in 1921, the
construction of Brown Bridge Dam began. Once

completed in 1922, the dam produced reliable energy
for TCL&P for the next 80 years.

In 1928, the first steam turbine was added to the Traverse City Waterworks building, which became the
site of TCL&P’s coal-fired Bayside Power Plant.

In 1937, TCL&P celebrated 25 years of supplying electricity to Traverse City. During this time, growth had
continued to drive electric demand. A second steam turbine was installed in the Bayside Power Plant
with an additional capacity of 1,000 kilowatts; the largest at that time and necessary to keep Traverse
City growing and thriving.

In 1948, an $850,000, five-year expansion program for
the Bayside Power Plant was approved. This new capital
would allow TCL&P to purchase new equipment to
increase generation capacity. Throughout the late 40's
and 50's, Traverse City Light & Power added new and
more powerful generators, opening the way for more
growth and prosperity for the Traverse City area.

Other milestones and events occurred that would further
impact the delivery of electricity to Traverse City
residents and businesses. In 1950, Consumers Power
Company purchased all assets of the Michigan Public

Page 4 of 27

14




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Service Company. In 1961, the Keystone Dam washed out due to heavy rains and extensive flooding of
the Boardman River. That dam was never rebuilt.

In 1964, the city explored the possibility of expanding i
the Bayside Power Plant at a cost of $3.5 million. In i
1965, voters approved the expansion by an over 2-to-1
margin and construction began. In 1967, the Bayside
Power Plant expansion was completed. The peak of
the new addition was almost 99 feet; roughly the
height of the top of the historic Park Place Hotel. The
height was necessary to house the overhead coal
conveyor and handling system.

by ——ee e
During the blizzard of 1977, work crews had to brave snow depths of 18 inches and more to restore
power. Fortunately, because TCL&P had locally generated power, TCL&P customers had plenty of power
for their consumption needs during that tough winter, while other major Midwest utilities had to ask
customers to cut down on their consumption. The utility hit a lifetime peak production of 22,200

kilowatts on January 19, 1977.

In 1976, as the electric utility industry and how it operated had become more complex, the City
Commission established an ad hoc committee to study the advisability of establishing a separate TCL&P
Board. In January 1977 the ad hoc committee submitted its recommendation to create a two-year
TCL&P Advisory Board which was approved by the voters in April 1977. In 1979 the TCL&P Advisory
Board submitted a draft charter amendment to the City Commission, a public hearing was held, and the
City Commission approved putting the draft charter amendment on the next ballot. After much analysis
and public input, the voters approved the creation of the TCL&P Board on April 2, 1979.

In 1981, the Department of Natural Resources (“DNR") and TCL&P began discussing the development of
a Fish Management Plan for the migratory fish, primarily salmon, that ran up the Boardman River each
fall. After numerous meetings and approvals of the City Commission, the Michigan DNR, the Natural
Resources Committee and the TCL&P Board, the Boardman River Trap and Transfer Harvest Facility was
approved. The facility, located east of Hall Street, was completed in 1987.

In 1988, TCL&P held its first annual tree seedling giveaway at the
Bayside Power Plant in celebration of Earth Day. Seedlings were given
away to customers and local community groups.

1996 was a major milestone year for TCL&P. The utility, long
committed to exploring renewable energy sources, pioneered the first
utility grade wind turbine in Michigan. The turbine was installed on M-
72 and was, at the time of installation, the largest utility grade wind
turbine in the United States.

Prior to the installation of the M-72 wind turbine, TCL&P developed
the Green Rate. This rate allowed customers to voluntarily pay more
on their monthly utility bill. The money collected went towards paying
for the wind turbine, thereby supporting renewable energy. The

. Page 50f27

15




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Green Rate was the first of its kind in the country and is now used as a model nationwide.

As the new millennium approached, TCL&P was on the
cusp of significant changes and innovations. In 2002,
Traverse City Light & Power, along with four other
municipal electric utilities, participated in the Michigan
Public Power Agency’s natural gas-fired combustion
turbine project in Kalkaska, MI. The project continues to
provide reliable energy to the electric grid during peak
demand times in the summer and winter months.

In 2005, the Bayside Power Plant (located in Traverse
City’s “Open Space” on West Grand Traverse Bay), which
had been relegated to a lesser role of peak power
support, was removed. Parts of the plant were sold to a Honduran company that planned to reassemble
the power-generating portion of the plant in Guatemala.

In the fall of 2006, the license to generate electricity at the Boardman, Sabin and Brown Bridge dams
was surrendered to FERC. The Brown Bridge Dam was removed in 2013 with plans to also remove Sabin
and Boardman dams in the near future.

In response to Michigan Public Act 295 legislation, in 2009 TCL&P contracted to purchase all generation
output from five, two-megawatt wind turbines located in McBain, MI. In the fall of 2010, when all five
turbines were operational, TCL&P had the highest percentage of renewable generation to total
generation of any utility in Michigan.

Also in 2010, stemming from TCL&P’s announcement to construct a biomass generation facility, a ballot
proposal was approved by voters to amend the City Charter to provide that any decision to build or
acquire a power generation facility shall be subject to a referendum of city resident voters.

In 2012, Traverse City Light & Power celebrated its
100" Anniversary. TCL&P’s focus remains much the
same as it has over its many years of service,
providing customers with safe, reliable and
affordable electricity.

In March of 2012, TCL&P experienced one of the
worst winter storms in the utility’s history. At the
peak of the storm, approximately 8,000 of TCL&P’s
11,500 customers experienced outages. Due to the
extent of the storm, TCL&P enacted a mutual aid
agreement to request assistance from other electric
utilities to help in the restoration effort. This was the first time in utility history that TCL&P requested
mutual aid. Crews from Lansing Board of Water and Light, Grand Haven Board of Light & Power, Zeeland
Board of Public Works, Lowell Light & Power, Trees Inc. and NG Gilbert responded and provided
assistance. All TCL&P customers were restored within three days of the initial storm while some
customers in the surrounding areas experienced outages for more than one week.

Page 6 of 27

16




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

In the spring of 2013, TCL&P partnered with Cherryland
Electric Cooperative to offer the first Community Solar
Project in Michigan. The project allowed TCL&P customers
to purchase a SUN Share (one solar panel) in the project
and receive a monthly bill credit equal to the amount of
energy produced by their share. In addition to the project
being the first in the State of Michigan, it was also the first
such partnership in the United States between a
municipal and cooperative utility.

Also in 2013, after 18 years in operation, the TCL&P Board
approved the decommissioning of the TCL&P wind turbine located on M-72 after a series of mechanical
failures and unsuccessful attempts to repair the unit.

In December of 2014, TCL&P signed over ownership of the M-72 wind turbine to Heritage Sustainable

Energy, LLC, owners of Stoney Corners Wind Farm in McBain, Michigan and entered into a Power
Purchase Agreement to buy the output of the turbine.

Page 7 of 27

17




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

1.2 Current TCL&P Power Supply Makeup

| Coal - 97.07%
2009 Calendar Year
| Natural Gas - 2.78%

M Wind - .15%

m Coal 83.33%
B Market -0.03% 2014 Calendar Year
m Landfill Gas 2.91%

M Natural Gas 5.32%

Generation purchased off the
Market may be coal or natural gas.

H Wind 8.48%

As displayed in the charts above, TCL&P’s power supply has significantly changed from 2009 to 2014,
primarily motivated by Public Act 295 signed into law on October 6, 2008. The Act, known as the Clean,
Renewable and Efficiency Energy Act, established a Renewable Energy Standard for all utilities in the
State of Michigan. This Renewable Energy Standard requires Michigan electric providers to achieve a
retail supply portfolio that includes at least 10% renewable energy by 2015.

As a mechanism to meet this renewable standard, TCL&P entered into a purchase power contract with
Heritage Stoney Corners Wind Farm, LLC to provide renewable capacity of up to 10 mega-watts (“MW”)
and all associated renewable energy credits. Additionally, TCL&P entered into a purchase power
agreement with Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC to purchase the output of the M-72 wind turbine
previously owned by the utility.

Another factor affecting the utility’s generation portfolio was the elimination of the Michigan Power
Agency Pool in December 2010, which was replaced with a purchase power contract with Lansing Board
of Water and Light (“LBWL”) composed of electricity from LBWL's Eckert Coal Generating Plant. This
agreement allows the minimum purchase of 10 MW of electric energy up to a maximum of 45 MW to
replace TCL&P’s deficient energy needs. This is a five year contract set to expire on December 31, 2015,
with an automatic extension of one year.

Page 8 of 27

18




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Another separate contract was entered into with LBWL to serve as TCL&P's energy services agent for
purchasing and selling deficient/excess energy in the MISO market.

TCL&P, along with other Michigan municipal utilities, is a member of the Michigan Public Power Agency
(“MPPA”). The agency was formed to acquire interests in certain electric generation plants and related
transmission lines to service its members. In 1983, through MPPA, TCL&P entered into a purchase
power agreement for 26.35% of the energy generated by MPPA’s 4.8% interest in the Campbell 3 plant;
and in another agreement, 4.53 % of the energy generated by MPPA’s 18.6% interest in the Belle River
Plant. In 2002, TCL&P entered into a 25-year power supply contract for 75.9% of MPPA’s Kalkaska
Combustion Turbine project. In 2009 TCL&P contracted for 8.13% of energy generated in MPPA's
landfill gas renewable energy contract with Grainger Electric of Michigan, LLC. Most recently, in 2014
TCL&P entered into an Energy Services Agreement with MPPA, whereby, MPPA on behalf of the utility
will secure power and energy for the utility’s present and future needs through contractual agreements.

Historical and Forecasted Peak Demand (MW's)

90

80

- P e /-/

2008 Recession
60 /
50 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
()] o — o~ o < n w0 ™~ [+0] [¢)] o — (o] o < %a] w ™~ [¢)} [e)] (@]
(%)} o o (] o o (=] (=) o o o i — — = L (= i — (=) [ o
[9)} (=] o (=] o o (=] o Q o Q o o o (@] o o o o o o o
— ™~ o~ o~ o~ o ~ o~ (o] (o] o o~ o~ o™ o ™~ ~ o~ o~ o™~ o~ o

Calendar Year

This chart represents TCL&P’s historical and forecasted peak demand from 1999 through 2020.
Forecasted amounts in years 2014 and beyond were based on an Integrated Resource Plan prepared for
TCL&P by R.W. Beck, Inc. in 2010.

Page 9 of 27

19




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

1.3 Governance

The TCL&P Board was created in 1979 as a discrete component unit of the City of Traverse City and is
referred to in the City Charter as a Department. A separate board was created to manage all aspects of
the utility, with the City Commission approving its budget.

The TCL&P Board is a seven member board appointed by the
City Commission, plus one non-voting ex-officio member, the
City Manager. At least five of the seven members are non-
commissioner members with five year alternating terms.
One of the five may be a non-city resident, but must be a
TCL&P customer. As part of the seven member Board, at
least one member, but no more than two, must be a City
Commissioner that serves a two year term.

The City Commission also approves the utility’s budget, six-
year capital improvements plan, and authorizes bond issues.
In addition, the City Commission approves ordinance change
requests, approves agreements that directly impact the City, and provides for the utility’s vehicle fleet
needs through the Garage Internal Service Fund.

Customarily, one annual joint study session of the City Commission and the TCL&P Board takes place to
discuss various current topics and the future direction of the utility.

1.4 Customer Base

TCL&P provides services to Traverse City and part of the outlying areas in Blair, East Bay, Elmwood,
Garfield, Paradise and Peninsula Townships. Customers inside the city limits represent 77% of the
utility’s customer base and 72% of its revenues; customers outside the city limits represent 23% of the
utility’s customer base and 28% of its revenues.

As of fiscal year-end, June 30, 2014 the utility served an average of 12,417 customers and sold 327,292
mega-watt hours (“MWH”) of electricity. 75% of the utility’s customers are residential that provide 20%
of the utility’s revenues; conversely, 25% are commercial customers that provide 80% of the utility’s
revenues. An average residential customer uses 562 kWh per month, which equates to a monthly bill of
$62.55.

Page 10 of 27

20




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

TCL&P Service Area Map N

"F’\]

ST
Bl

<R\

H
|

i

Yo
gg‘ﬂ
1
o
=
il
@F_W
iy
5
1 BT l.E
LEGEND

D TCL&P Service Area

e Traverse City City Limits ~

1.5 Rates

Of the forty utilities surveyed in 2014, TCL&P rates are the seventh lowest rates for residential. Small
commercial rates are ranked twenty-third, while TCL&P’s large commercial is eleventh lowest in the
state. TCL&P’s last rate increase was in 2014, which was the first rate increase in eight years; however,
purchased power costs have increased over the years which has directly impacted customer billings
through a Power Cost Recovery rate.

The following graph represents State of Michigan Average Residential Price and was obtained from the
U.S. Energy Information Administration and reflects the latest public provided data, 2012.

Rates are established to cover cost of services. TCL&P currently maintains an electrical infrastructure
that amounts to approximately $48M in capital investment. Investments include 350 miles of overhead
and underground distribution circuits, 35 miles of transmission circuits, three transmission substations
and four distribution substations with an additional distribution substation under construction.

Page 11 of 27

21




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

State of Michigan Average Residential Price (cents/kWh)

As reported by the U.S. Energy Information Administration

28.32

Bayfield Electric Coop, Inc-Cooperative
Alger-Delta Coop Electric Assn-Cooperative
Upper Peninsula Power Co-Investor Owned

Wisconsin Electric Power Co-Investor Owned
City of Negaunee-Municipal

Presque Isle Elec & Gas Coop-Cooperative
City of Crystal Falls-Municipal

The DTE Electric Company-Investor Owned
Great Lakes Energy Coop-Cooperative

City of Gladstone-Municipal

Midwest Energy Cooperative-Cooperative
Wyandotte Municipal Serv Comm-Municipal
Alpena Power Co-Investor Owned
Cherryland Electric Coop Inc-Cooperative
Consumers Energy Co-Investor Owned

City of Norway-Municipal

Tri-County Electric Coop-Cooperative

City of Grand Haven-Municipal

Village of L'Anse -Municipal

City of Lansing -Municipal

Marshall City of -Municipal

Village of Baraga-Municipal

Coldwater Board of Public Util-Municipal
City of Sturgis-Municipal

Hillsdale Board of Public Wks-Municipal
Cloverland Electric Co-op-Cooperative
Thumb Electric Coop of Mich-Cooperative
City of Escanaba-Municipal

City of South Haven -Municipal

Northern States Power Co-Investor Owned
City of Detroit-Municipal

City of Bay City -Municipal

City of Niles-Municipal

City of Petoskey -Municipal

City of Holland-Municipal

Wisconsin Public Service Corp-Investor Owned
City of Marquette -Municipal

Indiana Michigan Power Co-Investor Owned
City of Traverse City -Municipal

City of Zeeland -Municipal

W Average Price (cents/kWh)

T
0.00 500 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 30.00

Page 12 of 27

22




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

1.6 Financial Health

TCL&P has sustained financial stability over the past several years by maintaining above adequate cash
reserves to cover both operating and capital expenses. The 2013-14 fiscal year the utility ended with
net income of $4M. This was partially attributed to excess power supply sold on the market during part
of the year and the Board lifting the power service cost recovery cap in October 2013.

Below is a summary of various financial and operating ratios covering revenue per kWh to financial
ratios such as operating and current ratio, along with expenses per kWh, and retail customer statistical
comparisons. As a municipal utility, TCL&P is best compared to the APPA’s — North Central/Plains region
statistics. The only exceptions are (1) TCL&P currently has no outstanding debt and (2) the current ratio
is higher for TCL&P because it includes investments as current assets in TCL&P’s financial statements
while other utilities do not.

Traverse City Light & Power

Report on Financial and Operating Ratios | APPA-North |
(Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013, 2011 and 2009) Central/Plains |
1 |
2012 Median
Ratio Description 2013 2011 2009 Values
| | | ] 1
'Revenue per KWH* | |
| *|All Retail Customers 5 0.0%0 | 3 0.086 (3% 0.083 $ 0.086
* Residential Customers 5 0.096 | S 0.097 | § 0.094 S 0.103
* Commercial Customers $ 0.099 | $ 0.094 |5 0.092 S 0.096
* Industrial Customers $ 0.076| S 0070 % 0.068 S 0.076
|Debt to Total Assets N/A N/A N/A 0.231
|Operating Ratio 1.140 1.058 0.946 0.901
|Current Ratio 9,58 14.37 13.28 2.80
|Net income per revenue dollar N/A[ S 0.050| $ 0.156 S 0.040
Uncollectible accounts per revenue dollar S 0.0009 | $ 0.0007 | $ 0.0017 S 0.0011
Retail customers per employee 305 271 286 374
Total OM expense per KWH sold S 0.097 | $ 0.083 | § 0.070 S 0.075
Total OM expense per retail customer $ 66415 682 | $ 608 S 463
Total power supply expense per kWH sold S 0.073 | § 0.059 | $ 0.049 S 0.062
Purchased power cost per KWH 5 00743 00595 0.049 $ 0.059
Retail customers per meter reader 4,740 5,951 4,732 6,368
{Distribution OM expense per
retail customer S 295 | $ 275 | S 226 $ 135
|Distribution expense per
| circuit mile $ 9,980 | § 9,363 | $ 7,633 $ 7,093
|Customer accounting, service and
. |salesexpense per retail customer S 415 46| S 47 S 54
Administrative and general
|expense per retail customer S 815 111 % 94 S 155
'Energy loss percentage N/A 3.70% N/A 3.49%

Page 13 of 27




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

2. Vision and Mission Statements

As part of the overall strategic planning process, a committee consisting of Board and staff members
was convened to review the current vision and mission statements and brainstorm new options that
may better reflect the utility today based on the ideals of the current Board and expectations of the
utility’s customers and residents. After much review and discussion, the following statements were
adopted by the Board:

2.1 Vision Statement

“To build the long-term value of Traverse City Light & Power for the benefit
of the City and its residents and all Traverse City Light & Power customers.”

2.2 Mission Statement

“The Mission of Traverse City Light & Power is to provide the Public
Power benefits of safety, lower rates, high reliability, local control
and exceptional customer service to the City and its residents and

all Traverse City Light & Power customers.”

3. Strategic Issues

At the beginning of the strategic planning process, the Board and staff participated in focused planning
sessions to identify the top priorities of the utility now and into the future. Below is a summary of the six
Strategic Issues that were identified through this process. In the following pages, each will be discussed
further to show how the Strategic Issues impact the utility.

e Financial Stability

Power Supply Strategy

System Reliability & Power Quality
Technology

High Quality Workforce

Customer Satisfaction

Page 14 of 27

24




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

3.1 Financial Stability

Financial stability is an important strategic issue because it is the function that allows the possibility for
the goals to be achieved in every other strategic issue. It is not the sole function, but one that is
necessary. Additionally, with management being financially responsible and transparent of its
operations, it ensures the public’s trust to continue with the strategic plan goals set forth by
management and approved by the Board. The areas focused on for this strategic issue include:

e Provide transparent communications on the financial health of the organization.
e Maintain the public’s trust by being accountable at all levels of management.

The Operating Strategy for Financial Stability is to:

“Maintain positive operating cash flows and adequate capital
reserves to sustain the financial health of the utility.”

Five main Business Goals were identified to sustain and improve TCL&P’s Financial Stability:

1. Provide transparent communications on the financial health of the organization to customers
through an annual report by March 31, 2015.
Metrics will be developed to measure how the utility is operating compared to prior years.
These metrics will be composed of ratios that are suggested by the utility’s collaborating
agencies such as American Public Power Association and Michigan Municipal Electric Association
along with others utilized by municipal public power agencies. Current and historical data will
be provided in an annually published report for the Board and public. Additionally, a dashboard
will be developed for TCL&P’'s website that is similar to Governor Snyder’'s dashboard
requirement set forth for local municipalities. Creating both of these methods of communication
will provide the Board and customers information to evaluate the operations of their public
power utility.

2. Enhance public engagement through quarterly performance reporting to the Board and public
(on-going).
Providing the Board with easy to understand quarterly financial statements and Capital Plan and
Strategic Plan progress reports will allow for educated and well informed decision making that
will positively impact the future of the Utility.

3. Develop a policy for the utility to provide guidance to the Board as to the acceptable annual
contribution to the City for capital projects.
This policy will provide the Board and the City Commission an acceptable amount that
ratepayers are willing to have embedded within the utility rate structure for both operational
costs and capital projects. This amount can then be included within the City’s and Light and
Power Department’s budget cycle for appropriate financial planning. Ratepayer guidance will be
obtained through a survey or focus groups with meaningful questions developed by staff and
reviewed by the Board with different weights placed by customer rate class.

Page 15 of 27

25




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

4. Review current workplace flows for efficiency enhancement through new developed process

and procedures that will provide a proper planning environment and execution process for
utility projects.

Workplace flows at times may become complacent and it is beneficial for staff to hold
brainstorming sessions to develop new processes and procedures that will lead to efficiencies
within the organization. Included within the brainstorming sessions, staff will develop and
implement a plan to incorporate the newly developed processes and procedures and continually
monitor on an annual basis for improvement.

Develop and implement rate structures to promote financial stability along with energy
conservation.

The purpose is to provide a simplified rate structure for ease of administration while
incorporating new technologies such as AMI that allows for significant data collection for
multiple benefits. Some possible benefits include energy efficiency, demand side management,
distribution network management, improved data quality, and accurate billing.

Page 16 of 27

26




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

3.2 Power Supply Strategy

Power Supply Strategy is an important strategic issue because it represents 75% of TCL&P’s operating
costs and impacts Traverse City’s local economy through the utility’s rate structure. With industry
experts providing knowledge to the Board and staff through planned education sessions, the utility is
able to make knowledgeable decisions regarding TCL&P’s power supply future. Having a diverse
portfolio and implementing state and Board requirements, including energy efficiency and renewable
energy, allows the utility to be in regulatory compliance while not at major risk with only one fuel
source. The areas focused on for this strategic issue include:

e Educate the Board and public in power supply.

e Come to a decision on power generation (ownership/local).

e Determine Board and customer risk tolerance regarding various energy options.
e Manage load growth through energy efficiency programs.

The Operating Strategy for Power Supply Strategy is to:

“Ensure sufficient power supply in a fiscally responsible manner.”
Four main Business Goals were identified to sustain and improve TCL&P's Power Supply Strategy:

1. Create a long-term plan designed to implement programs and/or incentives that will manage

load growth aimed at reducing on-peak demand by July 31, 2015. Energy efficiency programs
will be implemented to achieve the maximum energy efficiency outcomes for the dollar
amounts budgeted for the benefit of all ratepayers.
Knowing that “the lowest cost energy is the energy that is saved,” TCL&P will develop a plan,
with assistance of an outside consultant, to optimize its energy efficiency program offerings to
directly manage load growth, therefore reducing the amount of capacity needed. With on-peak
energy being some of the most expensive, TCL&P will focus efforts on offering customer
programs that reduce or shift on-peak demand to off-peak.

2. Implement recommendations from the IRP report.
The IRP will be updated with the latest actual information and review and update
recommendations for power supply purchases going forward. The utility will continue to work
through the Michigan Public Power Agency to strategically structure purchases to allow for
flexibility while insulating customers from the volatile power market.

3. Investigate generation opportunities that complement the power supply mix.
In combination with the state’s new energy plan and expected increase in renewable energy
standards, the utility will work with the Michigan Public Power Agency in evaluating future
power supply agreements that provide stability in rates, while diversifying the power supply
portfolio of the utility.

4. Develop a plan for meeting State guidelines on the new Energy Plan — 2015.

By the end of the calendar year it should become clear what the state’s energy plan is for the
future. It is anticipated that the renewable energy standard will be increased. The utility will

Page 17 of 27




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

position itself to meet the requirements within the mandated timeframe(s). Staff will prepare a

compliance plan as a guide to future energy purchases.

Page 18 of 27

28




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

3.3 System Reliability & Power Quality

System reliability is the utility’s plan to maintain and improve its electrical infrastructure system which
consists of:

e Three transmission substations.

e Approximately thirty-five miles of transmission lines.

e Four, soon to be five, distribution substations.

e Two hundred miles of overhead distribution lines.

e One hundred and fifty miles of underground distribution lines.

e Seven thousand poles.

e Two thousand transformers.

This plan will help the utility analyze and select system improvement projects based on a rating system
of several criteria to increase the utility’s reliability. TCL&P will be working closely with other city
departments, utilities, and customers in order to maximize the effect of the project with joint
construction efforts. The areas focused on for this strategic issue include:

e Enhance and develop new system maintenance programs.

o Define and implement system improvement strategies.

o Formalize the storm restoration plan.

e Improve communication processes with customers, other utilities and city departments.

The Operating Strategy for System Reliability is to:

“Take a proactive approach to maintain a high level of
system reliability in a cost effective manner.”

Four main Business Goals were identified to enhance TCL&P’s System Reliability & Power Quality
throughout the electrical system:

1. Annually review, enhance and develop system maintenance programs ensuring Average
Service Availability Index (“ASAI”) remains above 99.970%.
ASAl is the ratio of the total number of customer hours that service was available during a given
time period to the total customer hours demanded (in 2013 it was 99.991%). In 2013, TCL&P
completed a circuit rehabilitation program on circuit BW-22 where crews performed
maintenance including partial rebuilds by replacing equipment, replacing wire, and adding
fusing across the entire circuit. TCL&P plans to continue with this circuit rehabilitation in 2015
with circuit BW-31. TCL&P will also implement inspection programs throughout the system from
poles to pad mount cabinets. This data will be used as criteria within the rating system to
determine which areas are in most need of maintenance.

2. Develop a rating system to prioritize capital system improvements, to be updated annually.
This system will be utilized annually in the utility’s capital improvements project planning
process. The system will help prioritize projects over the next six years to increase system
reliability and power quality to TCL&P customers.

Page 19 of 27

29




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Coordinate construction projects hetween TCL&P, other city departments, and other utilities.
TCL&P will work with City departments through the City’s annual capital improvements process
in coordinating City and TCL&P capital projects. This coordination will create efficiencies and
less inconvenience to ratepayers through the construction process. TCL&P will also work with
other area utilities such as cable and telephone to coordinate projects. This is especially
important when it comes to undergrounding as available right-of-way is limited in some areas. It
is a priority of TCL&P to maintain communications with affected customer through
neighborhood meetings, direct mailers or door hangers regarding upcoming projects.

Formalize written switching and tagging procedures as recommended by Hometown
Connections.

Switching and tagging procedures are a written set of instructions used to de-energize, energize
or transfer load between equipment and or substations. Following these written instructions
minimizes the risk of unnecessary outages, damage to equipment and helps ensure the safety of
employees involved. Formalizing these procedures will ensure completeness and uniformity in
the preparation of switching orders as well as the actual switching and tagging conducted in the
field.

Page 20 of 27

30




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

3.4 Technology

Technology plays a valuable role within all strategic areas and is at the forefront of the electric utility. In
recent years, technical innovation has become a leading factor in modernizing the face of the electric
utility by creating efficiencies within all aspects of the business. Therefore, it is necessary to embrace
technology as a strategic issue. The areas focused on for this strategic issue include:

e Ensuring security for the integrity of the utility.
Implementing energy efficiency technologies.
Maximizing operational efficiencies.

Enhancing communications.

e Keeping abreast of future technology opportunities.

The Operating Strategy for Technology is to:

“Embrace technologies for the benefit of the customers and community.”
Nine main Business Goals were identified to sustain and improve TCL&P’s Technical efficiencies:

1. Enhance video security monitoring at TCL&P's facilities.
TCL&P will install video monitoring systems at several of its substations and other facilities and
has identified several benefits. Remotely monitoring substation access provides increased
safety benefits for the crews that need to work in these potentially hazardous locations. It also
will provide enhanced security to TCL&P’s primary assets by being able to monitor the locations
24/7.

2. Implement a new work order management system.
TCL&P will implement a new web-based work order management system to update or replace
its current work order management system. Implementing a system that crews can utilize in the
field will increase efficiencies by allowing for instantaneous data access and updates. This will
provide better metrics for improved efficiencies in project planning, reporting, billing and crew
management.

3, Install and implement an Integrated Voice Response (IVR) system for outage management.
High telephone call volumes are not uncommon during power outages. Implementing an IVR
system is a great way to prevent customers from receiving a busy signal during these periods.
By bridging the IVR system with the Outage Management System (OMS) TCL&P will be able to
provide efficient and accurate information to its customers through various channels regarding
the status of the outage. An example would be texting customer information on an outage, or
receiving an outage from a customer via text.

4, Fully implement MilSoft Outage Management and Engineering Analysis Program.
The MilSoft Solutions system is currently not being used to its full potential. The completion of
the electric system model and system mapping information will help to provide TCL&P
maximized benefits and efficiencies to the electric utility.

Page 21 of 27

31




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

Update the utility’s Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System to current
technology.

The new SCADA systems are designed from SQL database and web-hased deployment and are
much more convertible than the existing system TCL&P has today. Integrating the current
SCADA technology ensures that as system updates and advances in functionality are needed
TCL&P will be able to accept those updates seamlessly.

Complete a study analyzing implementation reasons for the Advanced Metering Infrastructure
(AMI) Pilot.

In future years, TCL&P is looking to deploy an AMI network. The first phase is a pilot rollout to a
small select area to gain metrics in order to make adjustments for a larger rollout. There are
many different reasons and benefits that a utility would look to gain in doing an AMI project.
Therefore, prior to the pilot, staff felt it necessary to complete a study to analyze the reasons in
particular that TCL&P would be looking to benefit from this project.

Safeguard the utility from cyber threats to stay current with industry standards {(on-going).
The cyber security threat environment is one that is constantly changing and evolving rapidly.
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and National Electric Reliability Commission
(NERC) have guidelines and standards to follow for cyber threats. By following these guidelines
TCL&P will maintain an electric system that is highly reliable against cyber intrusions that could
affect TCL&P customers. On the business side, examples of cyber threats include data theft,
denial of service attacks, website defacement and customer information disclosure or privacy
breaches. On the operations side, cyber threats could target the generation and delivery of
power. The greatest threat to electricity delivery is a sophisticated and coordinated cyber-
physical attack on the operations side aimed at causing regional power outages. TCL&P will
continue to adapt and follow guidelines provided by NERC and FERC to ensure system
reliability.

Create emergency technology back-up procedures.

Electric utilities operate now much as they did a century ago, but the environment in which they
operate is changing radically, resulting in a shift of emerging technologies. With the deployment
of these key technologies, technical staff needs to have adequate coverage to sustain the
utility’s operations around the clock. Staff has recognized that we fall short in this area and will
create a procedure to utilize in the event of a coverage limitation.

Research and implement technology that will effectively communicate pertinent utility
information with customers.

The utility will focus on additional ways that utilizing technology will provide a more effective
means of getting information out to customers. This will range from placing the Qutage
Management System map on the TCL&P website to mass texting capabilities that notify
customers regarding outages, weather and utility payment scams.

Page 22 of 27

32




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

3.5 High Quality Workforce

TCL&P recognizes the value and importance of employees who are an essential component to the
successful operations of the utility. Promoting and encouraging a high quality workforce needs to
continue and strengthen in order to ensure that TCL&P provides excellent service to its customers and
community. The areas focused on for this strategic issue include:

e Maintain a safe work environment through collaborative efforts between management and the
union.

e Foster a work environment that encourages professional development for the betterment of the
organization.

e Ensure the organization’s efforts attract and retain qualified candidates.

e Communication throughout the organization that will allow for transparency, accountability,
trust and respect amongst management and union employees.

The Operating Strategy for High Quality Workforce is to:

“Create and maintain an organizational culture that empowers
and educates employees with the end result being a safe,
motivated, and highly skilled workforce.”

Five main Business Goals were identified to sustain and improve the quality of TCL&P’s workforce:

1. Continue engaging in efforts towards employee professional development and performance

management in order to ensure that the workforce has the knowledge, skills and abilities to
evolve in their positions and are accountable in the work heing performed (on-going).
The utility will continue to foster a work environment that encourages professional
development, but at the same time stresses accountability in work performance. This will
involve formalizing a process to transfer knowledge from the seasoned employees while
working with the union on a succession plan that allows for successful internal growth. Included
within this framework will be the development of an employee evaluation method that
monitors internal growth and measures performance in order to ensure that the utility is
utilizing our human capital efficiently.

2. Align work tasks, processes, and knowledge and skill requirements with both current and
future needs of the organization.
The operations of the utility have and will continue to evolve in the future. It is imperative that
the duties, knowledge and skill level requirements of each position match the needs of the
utility. Therefore, a complete review of all positions will be performed.

3. Enhance employee engagement on issues facing the utility through communication efforts
that are transparent and effective.
TCL&P will continue to focus on effective communication that is successful in distributing
information internally throughout the organization. Employee participation and engagement in
this process is imperative in order to minimize the spread of misinformation and increase overall

Page 23 of 27




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

employee morale. Additional avenues of communication such as increasing the use of
technology will be utilized.

Modernize recruitment strategies, selection techniques and retention efforts to ensure that
the utility is successful in attracting and retaining qualified candidates.

As an employer of choice in the region, TCL&P will look at ways to increase our effectiveness in
recruiting, selecting and retaining candidates that have the necessary skills and competencies
needed to perform work within the electric utility industry.

Promote employer and worker awareness of, commitment to, and involvement with safety to
effect positive change in the workplace culture through cooperative efforts and strong
leadership.

The Safety Development Plan drafted and finalized in 2014 was the first step in providing the
framework for areas that the utility wants to focus its efforts on developing and implementing
going forward. Staff will continue to use the actions and objectives identified in this Plan as a
guideline to continue to foster a culture of safety.

Page 24 of 27

34




Traverse City Light & Power
‘ Strategic Plan

3.6 Customer Satisfaction

Although Customer Satisfaction is affected by all of the previous Strategic Issues identified in this Plan,
there are many ways for the utility to encourage, track, and modify the way services are provided to
customers that will assist in striving for a high level of customer satisfaction. The areas focused on for
this strategic issue include:

e Maintaining a high level of customer service.

e Improving current and developing new communication avenues with customers.
e Providing a variety of value-added programs to customers.

e Strengthening partnerships for the betterment of the community.

e Ensuring lowest rates possible while meeting customer expectations.

The Operating Strategy for Customer Satisfaction is to:

“Sustain and improve the utility’s goodwill to all
customers by going the extra mile.”

Five main Business Goals were identified to sustain and improve TCL&P Customer Satisfaction levels:

1. Maintain a customer satisfaction rating above 95%.
The utility will continue to enhance efforts to ensure customers are satisfied with the services
provided by the utility. Measurement of our efforts will be done using a variety of methods that
may include extensive community wide surveys done every three to five years, automated
phone surveys following customer service representative interaction and quick outage surveys
done on a quarterly basis. Additionally, TCL&P will provide training opportunities for employees
on effective customer service practices.

2. Maintain customer rates lower than other utilities in the area.
It has been communicated to staff by the board that it is important to keep rates low when
compared to other utilities within the local area as this is an important benefit of being a public
power utility. TCL&P will measure the utility’s success in this area by completing an annual rate
survey of utilities throughout the state, and by completing a cost of service study no less than
every five years to be used for a rate analysis. If this goal is not achievable or financially feasible,
an explanation will be provided to the board and the operations or the goal will be revised.

3. Enhance the utilities communications efforts and community involvement by implementing
the Communications Strategy.
Successfully communicating with all customers is crucial in achieving customer satisfaction.
To accomplish this, TCL&P will implement the communication channels outlined in the
Communications Strategy. This will not only include the traditional methods but also will
incorporate community outreach efforts like school demonstrations and utility open houses.

Page 25 of 27

35




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

4. Continually analyze new and current value-added programs to meet or exceed the customer

expectations of its utility.

Providing electrical related program opportunities to customers is another way the utility can
build upon overall customer satisfaction. With the electrical industry evolving, the number of
new program opportunities could be endless, but evaluating which programs will be viewed as
beneficial will be essential to the overall program’s success. TCL&P staff will continually work to
add new and evaluate current programs to make sure they are meeting the needs of the TCL&P
customers by using industry specific resources such as the American Public Power Association,
Michigan Public Power Agency and attending relevant conferences.

Evaluate and implement services focused on assisting the unique needs of the utility’s key
account customers by December 31, 2015.

Key account customers represent some of the utility’s largest consumers. Although all
customers are of value to TCL&P, the distinct needs of this customer group require additional
attention from staff due to the level of electrical consumption and the economic impact of their
business on the greater community. Specific programs will be analyzed and implemented to
assist these customers to successfully do business in the Traverse City region.

Page 26 of 27

36




Traverse City Light & Power
Strategic Plan

4, Conclusion

The fundamental purpose of TCL&P’s strategic planning
process was to identify, consider and act on the internal
and external issues that are expected to have the greatest
influence on TCL&P’s ability to successfully achieve its
vision and mission in the future. Upon board approval of
the Strategic Plan, the real work will begin.
Implementation!

Staff will provide quarterly updates to the Board on its
progress towards implementing and/or achieving the :
identified goals. As the utility moves forward, this Plan will be used as a guide for future strategrc
planning.

Annually, the Board and staff, through the budgeting process, will review and update the Plan as
necessary to reflect changing Board and customer expectations of its public power utility. The utility
must stay in-tune with the evolving electric industry, economic conditions, and customer expectations.
The strategic issues of today including financial stability, power supply strategy, system reliability and
power quality, technology, high quality workforce, and customer satisfaction may not be the strategic
issues of the utility in the future. [t is the intent of TCL&P staff and its Board that this Plan be modified
from time-to-time to remain relevant and useful in managing the utility.

TCL&P has a very long and proud history of serving the electrical needs of the Traverse City community.
The utility looks forward to implementation of this Plan for the betterment of the City of Traverse City,
its residents and all TCL&P customers.

Page 27 of 27

37




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, February 10, 2015

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, John Taylor
Absent: Bob Spence, Jan Geht

Ex Officio Member -
Present: Jered Ottenwess, City Manager

Others:

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by p Tt
Consent Calendar portion of the Agend4:

Items Removed:

the Con§ 1t Calenﬂar

None.

Item 3 on the Agenda beinig'l

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

a. Consideration of Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary Service Rate and setting of a
Public Hearing.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

38




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 February 10, 2015

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Budros, that the Light and Power Board authorizes the
Secretary to set a Public Hearing for the creation of a Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary
Service Rate to be held at the February 24, 2015 regular meeting; and furthermore that a notice
of the Public Hearing be posted on the utility’s website and placed in the Traverse City Record
Eagle.

CARRIED unanimously. (Spence, Geht absent)
b. Introduction of Strategic Plan updated Business Goals.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services &
Rod Solak, Line Superintendent

Blake Wilson, System Engineer

Tom Olney, Operations Manager
Scott Menhart, Manager of Telecom &
Kelli Schroeder, Manager of Human

Ttem 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

hg\l‘s reque d the board binders be reviewed and updated where necessary.

Item 7 on the Agenda B'éi\ﬁ Eﬁ'blic Comment

No one from the public comiﬁented.

There being no objection, Chairman Taylor declared the meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretary
/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

39




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2015

Q'ST. 19]9

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
100 YEARS
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller K-
Date: February 17, 2015
Subject: Rate Comparison

Attached you will find the rate comparison of Residential Rate with consumption level at 500 kWh,
Residential Rate with consumption level at 1,000 kWh, Small Commercial Rate with consumption level
at 1,500 kWh and Large Commercial Rate with demand level at 35 kW and consumption level 11,500
kWh., The consumption amounts for the Small and Large Commercial Rates were obtained by
averaging TCL&P’s actual billing data from the last threc years.

The data for this rate comparison was obtained from utility websites, telephone calls/emails to respective
entities and is for the time period for rates effective as of December 2014.

The overall results for residential was TCL&P ranked 7th for the consumption level at 500 k'Wh and
11th for the consumption level at 1000 kWh. Small commercial was in the mid-range with being ranked
at 23rd, less expensive than Consumers Energy, but more expensive by $26.36 than Cherryland Electric
Cooperative. Large commercial is better than small commercial ranked at 11", less expensive than both
Consumers Energy and Cherryland Electric Cooperative.

40




_ PaumpQ Joisaau| 1
[ sjedpun| W
[ SeAREIadoo]| o
|
_ QUDINIUBISUS paapisUOD S } asNDI3q 2B10Y2INS JWOIU! MO|
2PNJIUI J0U S0P SISAIDUY "UCIIDWIOfU! BUNIIG FTOZ JOGUISIIQ UO PISDY 'SIIOWIISS UIDIUOD ADW UOLDWLIO[U] 2104 FWOS "SIUWLIOdap Bulllg
(3030531 01 5,{{OW-3/S}{DI JUOYAS|3} PUD S3315GaM AN WOL PIUIDIGO UONBWLIOSUI 330Y 'AJUO 35N |DUIRIL] J0f BTDL Aq paipdald (330N
] ] ! ,
000z $ | 0TZI00 $ | 05£zZ000 $ | o00L8T0 S| | 134 | 9L'STT S| |¥8'Y S| 000 $[S09 $|8ET S| 05€6 S| v34 Auno) uodeuciug| o
00ZT  $ | IZBOOO S | 00E¥00'0 $|9096T0 S| | or vEOZT $ | | S9r S| 00°CT S|y S| STT S 086 $ {*d"N 1213ua3) Jamod ejnsuiuad Jaddn| |
00°s¢ s s $ | 0z9Z000 S | 006410 S| | 6E v8P0T $ €0t S| 00'ST S = S| TET S 0SrL 213192|3 e3j2q Jed|v| o
TEIE  § | €LTT00 $ | 0861000 S| 0v980'0 §| | 8t 0506 $| 8¥E S| TTTE $ 2901 $|660 S| 0TEr $ AZ13u3 saye7 320 0
00Tt $ | 000100 $ | 08vZO0'0 S| 096210 S| | LE 9€'98 §| TEE $|00TT 005 S| vTT $ 089 S AemaoN| w
I6€T  $ | 0Z100'0 $ | 000€000 S| 06EET0 S| | 9E 8798 $| TEE S| 16Tl $/090 $|05T $/ 5699 saunedan| w
L6 $ (85000°0) S 086Z000 S TLLETO S| | SE 6458 $| |0EE S |L¥6 $il6zo) s|svy $|9889 S {'d’N U193SIM) 214339(3 UISUCISIM | |
00°Z $ | 04520°0 $  000EQ00 S| 0ZSTIO S| | vE TIZ8 $| 9T'E S| 00L $ S8 S$|0ST S 0945 S asuy,]| w
00'vT  $ | PTE0OD $ 0vozooo S| sezzio S| | €€ P18 S| ITE S| 00FT $/LST $|20T S EFI9  $ 214322(3 A3UNOD-111, SHJOMIWOH | O
05'S $| - $ | I8pT000 | sLeET0 S| | [£3 €508 $| OTE $|0SS S - 5|90 B apopueAm | w
00'8T S| 965000 S| 0861000 $ | SYOTT0 S| | 1€ 8Z08 S| | 60t S |00°8T $ 86T $|660 slerss s aaneladoo) AB1suz 3sompin| 2
8T $| - $|00£z00'0 S 0S9ZT0 S| | [3 9T'08 | |80E $|8¥IT $| - $[seT s|sTes  $ siled [e3sAD| w
00°L $ | 062000 S | €v8200°0 S| ¥TOETO S| | 62 S6'8L $| |v0'E $|00L S| SPT $|6ET s|eose  § AZ1au3 siawnsuc)| |
SL9 $ | 0STO'0 S| 0081000 S| Ov6TTO S| | 8z SLBL S €0E S| SL9 $lese S|SLT s|0L6s S 19m0d 18 Y817 JO pieog UdARH puRID| W
STL $ | 091200 S| - slotwtre S | Lz 01'8L $| |00E S| STL S| 0801 $| - $|5045 3 lleysien | w
00°9T  $ | 90T00°0 $ | o6zzoo0 $ | €setre S| | 9z WLL S| | 86T S| 0091 $| €50 $|STT s|iL9s S Se0) 1@ 214322|3 9Js| anbsaid | 2
00°ST S | 6£500°0 $ | 0090000 $|0860TC S| | s2 18'SL $| | T6T $|00ST $|oLz  $|og0 sloses  $ 2anesRdoc) 214339|3 puelAiayd| 2
00°0T  $ | 0Z000'0 $ | €sgt000 S| ozzero  § | | v 6LSL $| | 167 $| 0001 s/oT0 $|891 slotte ¢ 431 73 1318/ JO pJeog Sujsuen| w
00°9 $ | 001000 S| 00006TT §$|6385CT0  § | | €z '€ $| | €8T $ /009 $/050 $ 6T s|s629 S Auedwo) uosip3 yonxg| |
00’8 S | 0¥Z000 $ | oogtoo0 $|otozte  $| | 2z S8'T’L S 03’z $ 008 $|0ZT $|080 $|S009 $ duoispe[o| w
00TT  § |(6T60000) S| 09TZ000 & | 9ETZT0 S| | 1z €6'TL § | LT S| 00T $ ooy} $ |80t $|8909 s I1339]3 quinyl| 2
05'L $ | 6£6000 $|Ov9T000 $ | OETTTC | | 0z 29TL § | | SLT S| 05L s/ 06r S |z80 s|99ss s ${40M UqNd JO pieod 3eps||iH| W
00°s $ | 009000 $ | ozezooo §|teetro  § | | [33 ISTL § | |SLT  $| 006 $/00€ $|S9T $|T1T65 $ Auedwo) samod euadly| |
00'6 S = S| 061000 $|ovstTo S| | 8T 6E0L $ | |TLT S 006 $ - S| 660 s|loLLs 8 aAjHado0) 21329|3 pueliaAcd| 3
OE'ET S| 06E00°0 $|ot6T000 S| 0TOOTO | | LT 9069 $ | | 99T S |OEET $/S6T $|TIT $|5008 ¢ sisanig| w
080T S | 06EZ00 S| zzotooo $|o0980Cc $ 0 | 9T 0589 $| | €9C S| 080T $ | S6TL S| 18€ s|oeee ¢ 12Mm0d g Y81 [[MeT | W
STt $ | 80000 S | 0002000 $|T19660C S| | ST 98'99 $§| | L5T S |S¥IT S v0z $|00T s|186r S Jeifemoq| w
S7'8 $ | 818T0°0 S| 005z00°0 S| 0£060C 5 | vT 6299 $| |SST $|sTe $/606 $|STT HEEEE 129X / Auedwio) Jamod $23.3S UIRYLON| |
05 $ | LE£00'D $ | ozszoo'o S| osee0C S| | €T 89v9 S| 6T S |05L $189¢ §|9z1 slscer S SN 2|gNd JO pILOg JAeMP|OT| W
0S'ET  $ | €Ev00°0 g - s|oogec0 S | fa) 09'v9 $| [8¥Z S| 0SET slmrz §| - s|osor S Juawiedaq sanlun sAIN| W
(43 Bl F S| 05Zzooo S| 6LL0T0 S| | 1T 6L€9 §| | sy §|ezge s - s|ert s|oses S SINOT 35| W
£6'6 g - $ | TTL1000 S| 0Eve00 S | (3 ST09 $| |TET S| €66 s -  $|980 B $)40/M 2[qnd JO pJEOE PUB|[OH| W
058 $|(869000) | 0££1000 $|09€0TC  $| | 6 0009 §| |I€T  $ |05 $ [(6v'E) S| 680 $logts ¢ Jamod 13 43N ananblen| w
068 $|(z€T00'0)  $ | TS60000 S | 082600 S| | ] 26'65 $| |0£Z S| 068 $ (99’0 $ |80 s|ossr S d81 21399|3 AuD Aeg| Wi
00°9 $ | 098000 $ - $ | oove00 S| | L 6565 §| | 6Z'CT S |009 $ 0EY S = sy $ Jamod 1§ 1yar] 31D assaaed)| w
STS $ | 861200 $ | 081000 S| 098200 S| | 9 6985 $| 9zT S|s¢S $ 6601 $|620 B xjoAaeyd| w
STL $ | 665000 $ | 0tzeooo S £48800 s | | S 6E8S $| |STZ S |STL $|o0E S| ¥ST S 9Err S ueBIYN A BUBIPU|/IIMOd D11399|3 UedLawy | |
00'6 $| - s |oogzoo0 S s8v00 S| | v 69vS $| 0TZ $|006 s -  s|stT HE (S3UILIOUIA) IIAIIS DI|GNG UISUOISIW, |
059 $ | TLSTO0 S| 000000'T $|0T890C S| | € [6ETs §| (86T $|059 $982 S|00T $ SOPE  $ Md8 puepaz| w
10'9 $ | 0¥¥00'0 HEE $ oow0o S| | z lzotty S| 18T S| TO'G sz S$| - S 0028 S Jamod @ 14317 e3sayD| W
0ot $ | 21000 $ overooo $|ozwo0 S| | T £0vr $| 69T S| 00% $1290 $|z90 S 0TLE S sdupds JogieH| w
| |
Aupiqepieay | 91BN ¥ISd 21BY S67 ¥d | 212y Adaug | Juey lesoL | xeL A ¥I5d S62 Vd A31zu3 TVILNIAIS3IY
| |
| YTOT 42qWA3Q - AdAINg ey SUI[F uedy
|

19Mod g W3 A1) assaned]

41



paumQ Jozsanuj| |
sjedpunial| w
saanesadoon| o
uofiubisur paIapisuod st )1 asnpIaq abIoyains wodu)
MOf 3PNI2UI 10U 530D SISAIDUY UONBWLOfUE BUiiig FTOZ J2quiadag U0 pasog “S310WISe U0 ADW UOHDWIOU! 310 3WOS SIUaWLIDGap
Buyjiq an1193ds3. 03 S,|IDW-3/5]/02 dU0Yda(a) pUD §33{5qam A1 WoLf PauIDIGo LooWLOfUI 9Dy Aju0 asn [pulalul J0f SRTDL AG Paindald 310N
000z  §|QTZI0O S| 0522000 S |oossto S| | 172 ZL0ET S| |88 S| 0007 s|oter $| ST $|00Z8T S v3y Aquno) uoBeuojug| o
007zt S | 1280070 S | 00EVD0'0 S| 909610 S| | or 6E'6ZZ $| |88 $|00TT $|tze  S$|0EY $ | 90'96T $ ('d’N [243u3D) Jamod ejnsuluad Jaddn| |
0o'sz 5| - 5| oz9zooo S| 00610 S| | 6E 89'€BT $ | | 90L $|00°ST s| - s|zot $ 006PT $ 211323 e32Q A8y | 2
00°ZT $ | cooto0 $ | osvzooo S |o0962T0 S| | SE YZ'09T S| | 9T'9 S| 00T S| 000T $|8¥T $ 1 09'62T S Aemion| w
00°L $ | 045200 $ | 000€00'0 | 0ZSTTD S| | LE YS6ST S| | ¥T'9 S| 00L $| 04T $| 05§ $ | 0TSIT $ asuy,]| w
a3 $ |(85000°0) S| 0862000 S| TLLETO S| | 9t S9°8ST S| |0T'9 S| L6 s |(gs'0) S| ve's S| TLLET S (*d'N UIISIM) 914393]3 UISUOISIM | |
T6'ET  $ | 021000 S | 000€00'0 S | 06EET0 S| | SE 60'8ST $| |809 S| T16ET s|ozt $|oot S| 06EET S Jsunedan| w
0SS HEE S| T8YTO0'0 S| S6ET0 S| | vE L6'EST S| | T6'S S| 0SS $| - s|ogc S| SLBET § jopuBAM | W
004 S | o6zO00 $ | €v8zooo S| vIOET0 S| | €€ TO6YT S| | SLS S 004 s| 06z S|18€ S| PTO0ET $ A3Jaug s;auwnsuoy !
SL9 $ | ¥0ST0'0 $ | 008T00'0 S| O¥6IT0 S| | (43 6S6YT $ | |SLS S SL9 $| v0ST $| 59T S| oreIT § 13mOd 3 Y31 JO pJecg UdARH pues | W
STL $ | 051200 $| - s |owtto S| | 1€ L98pT §| |Ts $|SsTL s|09tz $| - S| O0TYIT § lleysiey | w
00T S | ¥TECO'0 $ | 0y0Z00'0 S |S8TZT0 S| | 0€ TLLPT S| | 89S S 00T S| vre  $|v0T s|seer $ 31399[3 AJUN0D-1IL SHICMIWOH | 2
TTLE S| €TTZOO S| ossT00'0 S| 0¥9800 S| | 62 BP'LPT S| | L9S S| TZZE S| ETTT $|86T B AdJau3 sove] 1eaiD| 2
e §| - $ | oozzooo s |oseTro S| | 14 SELPT § | | 195 § SKTT S| - sjocz $|osgTr $ __sledjesAn|w
00'8T  $| 965000 S| 086T000 S| SHOTT0 S| | @ S8'TPT $ | | 9¥'S S| 00'8T $|965 $|86T S| S¥0IT § aAeIado0) AZ1au3 1SIMPIIN | D
000T S | 0200070 $ | gs8roco  $ | ozezro S| | 9z ov'orT $| |O¥'s $|000T $lozo $|092 s|ozeer § 14317 73 Ja3epn jo pleog Bujsuet| w
009 s | ootco'o $ | 00006TT $|68SZT0 S| | sz SY'6ET $| | 9€'S S| 009 $/00T $|6TT S| e8szr S Auedwo) uosip3 yo1q| !
009T  $ | 901000 S| oszzoco § | gsetto S| | vz 0Z'8ET $| | TES S| 00'ST $/90T $/62T $|eserr § S0 18 214393(3 5| anbsaud | 2
00's S | 00900'0 S| 0Z8200°0 S| TZSIT0 S| | €2 95'LET $| |6ZS S| 00§ $1009 $|90¢€ S| TZ8IT § Auedwo) Jamod euadyy| !
00'8 S | 0vz00'0 $ | oogtogo s |otozro s | [£4 SELET $| | BTS $|008 s$love $097T s|orozr S 2UO0Ispe|S| W
00'ST S | BESOO'0 $ | 0090000 S| 0860TD S| | T2 20'9€T $ | | €Z'S  $ | 00'ST S 6E'S S 090 S| 0860T S 3aResadoo) 213923 pueliliayd| 2
0S'L S | 6£600°0 $ | ovatoco | OETTTO0 | | 0z PrSET S| | TZS S| 0S¢ $ 616 5 ¥9T S| 0ETIT S SHOM 3Nqnd JO pIeog deps||iH | W
006 gl = $ | os6To00 S| ovsTTO S| | 61 YIET S| SOS S| 006 s -  s|6T s|ovsit § aA142d00] 214399(3 PUBIAOD| 2
002§ [(6T600°0)  $ | 09TTO00 S| 9ErTT0 S| | 13 SETET S| SOS S |00 $ (6Us] $ 917 S A 2M32913 quinyL| 3
0£'€T S| 06E00°0 $ | oT6T00C ¢ |o0TOOTO $ | LT ETVZT $| LLY S| OEET $06€ $ 902 $|oroor § Signg| w
143 S | 818100 $ | ooszoo¢ S| 0E0600 5| | 9T 00vZT $| LL¥ S| STE $|8T'BT $ 05T $|o0g0s S 129) / Auedwo) Jamod 523835 UIAYLICN | |
080T  $ | 06£Z0'0 $ | £Z9TO00 $ | 098200 §| | ST vo'ZTT S| |y S| 0801 $|06€C S| E9Y $|098L S 19M0d 8 1431 |lamoT| W
SY'TT S| 80v00°0 $ 0002000 $ 196600 S| | vT BT S| [69F S |sSYIT s|sov §|o00¢ $| 1966 S Jeidemoq| W
05t S | LELDO'O $ 1 0Z52000 § 056600 S| | [53 95Tt S| |89 $|0S'L $|LEL  §|T8T $/ 0566 S |qnd Jo pJeog Jajempjod| w
€9 S| = $ 0SZZ000 $ | 6L0T0 S| | F4] 0T S| [S9v S| ZE9 S| - $|stt $ 60T S . SIN07 15| W
00'9 $ | 098000 $| - $ |see600 5| | TT T6'SIT S| |£5v S| 009 $|loves 5| - S SsL'66 $ Jamod '3 3 AD dssaaeiL| W
0SE€T  § E£Tv000 &= $|oogs00 S| | 0T 9T'SIT $| |€vy S| 0S€El slevy 5| - $ o006 § juawiiedaq SanIN SAIN| W
£6'6 | - $ | 1141000 §|0Ew600 S| | 6 OF'EIT S| |95 S| €66 sl - sy $ 0Ev6  $ SO gNd JO PIe0g Pue|ioH | W
ST'S $ 861200 $ | 0841000 6| 098400 S| | 8 T6IIL $| |08 S| STS S (8612 §|8LT $ 098 § XI0A34RYD | W
05'8 S (8690000)  §| 01000 §|09g0T0 S| | L LUITT S| 8T S| 0S8 S |(869) S| LLT $|09€0T S Jamod g 31 a3enbie w
068 $ |{ZET000) 5| 156000'0 S | 08600 S| | 9 85°0TT § STy $ 068 S |(ZE'T) S| 560 $|0846 $ 4787 91199]3 A3D Aeg | w
STL $ | 665000 S | otzzooo | €z8800 S| | H 6L'80T S| [BTY $ | STL S| 66 S| ¥9T $|€L88 § ue3iya|N euelpul/19MOd D1103|F UBdLAWY | |
00’6 S # S | oogzoo'o S| s8ve00 S| | 14 Z0°00T S Sg'E S 006 ] = S| 0ET S|i8v8 S (2auIoua ) 931AI3S J1|GNg UISUOSIAN | |
05'9 S | ZLSTO0 S| o00000'T S |0T89000 S| | € 606 S| |59t $| 059 S| 2LsT $| 00T slotes § Md8 puepaz| w
109 $ | 0vv00°0 s - sloovt0o s | z 6L'L8 S| |8EE S |7109 slovy S| - sjoove S 1amod '3 1431 easPYD| W
ooy S | €TT00°0 S| OvZT00'0 S| 0ZRL00 S| | T 06'€8 S| |ETE S |00V S|ET S|¥TT sloevt § sduldg Jogleq| w
|
Apgejiesy | 93y ¥YoSd ey SETvd | ey Adauz | | Auey leoL xej Aungejiery | ¥dSd | S6TVd AZsauz TVILN3QISIY
| |
| $TOZ 19qWadag - AAAINS ey S14399(3 uediysin
| 1amod g 143 Ay assaned

42



PYTOZ Aquanaq - AAAING jey 2133 uediynw

paumQ J03s3Au]| |
sledoiuniy | w
SaAnesRdoo)| 2
_ QUD2IfjubISUl paJapPISUD 51 ) 3SNDIAQ 2510Y2INS IWEIUI MO]
3pnjauj 30U 520 SiSADUY 'UONDULICJUl BUlliG PTOZ JAQUIDBQ U0 PASDG *SIIDWIISS UIDIL0I ADW UOMDWLOUF 3101 BWOS ‘Syuawppdap buig
9A/102d52. 07 5,10W-3/5}j02 2U0YA3[a] PUD $3)SGam AN WoLf paujLIqo uonDWIOfUl 310y AjU0 3sn (ouIAIU) 10 49101 AG PaIDdald (10N,
!
008t $ 012100 R S| 00TLT0 S| | it LLTZE § | | L2781 $|ST8T $|S8T  $|0995C S V3 Ajuno) uofeuoug| o
00°9T $ | 128000 $ oFv S| 49610 S| | ot SE'0ZE S| | €I'8T S|TETT S|Ov'y S |IS69C § ('d"n [e1uaD) Jamod ejnsutuad Jaddn | |
00°LT $ | #0510'0 $ 799 s |oozrr'0 S| | 33 ELVLT S| | SS'ST $|9szz s|2vs  $|ooETT § Jamod 73 34317 JO pJeog UARH pueID | Wl
00°SE S | 000T0'0 $ | 9901 sloseeto § ) | 8€ 9£'0£2 S| | 0E'ST S|00ST $/990r $ OFveT $ AemioN | W
6LYT $ [(8s000'0)  § | 6v'EX $ 80ev10 $| | LE 9149z S| | ST $|{e80) S| 6reEr §|Toviz $ (d’N WI2ISIM) 311339(3 UISUCDSIM |
00's¢ S| - S| 8T $|00v10  §| | 9t 198292 $| | 88T sl = S8z §|050ZZ S 911093 E3[3Q 8|y | 2
00°L $ | 045200 $ | 60°TT slogvzro  $| | SE TT65C $ | | L9MT S| SS8E S| 60TT S| 0698T S asuy,| w
00'TE $  06£00°0 $ | 00T6T00'0 S | 06¥ET0 S| | vE 6595 § | ZSYT S|S8S  $|«8¢ $|sEwor S s1dums| w
L9'LT e S LEYOOOD S |9vZrT0 S| | €€ 99°€5Z | | 9EVT s - S|S6L $|69€IZ § 3nopueAm| w
00'vZ $ | 020000 S| 859 $|ozseto S| | F43 69°4vZ §| | ZO'WT s|6z0 S$|8s9 s$/08707 $ Y31 73 Ja1eAA J0 paeOg Suisue| w
ST N S| 60y S| iL6eT0 S | 153 v6'TVZ $| | SL'ET sl - $|60v S 9960Z $ sino73g| w
9L'LT S| 80P000  §|99°ST $ 65710 S | 0€ ozeve $| |1LEr $|Tr'9  $/99'ST $ 96881 $ oeiZemoq| w
I6'€T $ | 071000 slerit $ 06ET0 S| | 62 SETYT S| | 99°€T $|08T S EUIT $|§800T § Jaunedan| w
SL'TT S | 06€Z0°0 S | og'sT $|oozoto  $| | 82 86'65C |  8SEI $ 15858 $|08ST $|00EST S 4aM0d B 3431 |[3mOT| W
00°0T $ | 0620070 S|19¢ S| TroET0  §| | L2 S6'SET S| | 9E€T $ SEY $|19T $|v9S6T § ABIau3 s;awnsuo)| 1
SPeT 8] - $ | oo'0 S| o080€T'0  §| | 9z 6£'62T $ | | TO'ET $ S0t S|S0 $|0z96l § sjled [easA)| w
05'ST $ | 091200 s| - s |oszrro S| | sz 60’622 $ | | 6621 $|ovze $| - S|o9sotT S lleystew | w
0072 S | ¥T£00°0 $ 85T s|strzro S| | vz 85'7ee $ | | 09°CT S|T&'v  $|SST  §|ELTET § 313293 AJUN0)-1L SHIOMIWOH | 2
00°€T $ | 098000 $| - s|otzzro S| | €2 00'0ZC S| | spET s|jogzt $| - $/S9T8T § 19mod '3 33N A1) astaneIL | w
00°6T $ | gzvo00 I slooozto  § | | [14 99412 $| | ZETT $|ve9 & - $ 00081 $ dwedaq saMEN SIYIN| W
0072 S | 965000 $|aLt S zerro § | 1z 8r'sIZ S| | 02°TT S|v6'e  $ 9LT S 3S0LT $ 9anesadoo) Adiouz 1sompiN| 0
00'TT ) HIERS $ | 0E8TT0  §| | 0z 9'sIz $| |0z $|SOTT $|9LE S| SvaLT $ 1N 21qNd JO pJeog Ja3emp|oD W
00'L $ | 009000 S| €S $ | ZEBITO HIl 6T TTTC 5| | 10T $/006 S|ETS $|868LT Auedwe) Jamod eudd|y| |
00'8 $ | ovzooo S| ¥s's s|ocrzro $| | 8T L9TIT S| | B6IT S 09t $|vss  $|SSTET S Juoispe[| w
09'02 $ (z€100'0) S| 92TO000 S | 0SI9IT S| LT veL0Z $| | LLTT S|(86T) s|o8T $|SsLwT $ d'81 914399|3 AUD Aeg | w
1T'ZE $ | TZ6I00 S oLy $ | 0¥980'0 S| 1 TTL0Z §) | TLTT S| T88T S |9LF S| 096ZT S AdJjaug saye] 3easo| 2
Q0TI $ | 6£600°0 S 00S S | 05£0T°0 S| | ST SU'E0Z S 51T S| 6IPT S$|00S $|STIIL $ 140/ 21Iqnd JO pleog 3Jeps||iH| w
SZ'sT $ |(86900'0)  $ | 91000 $ | 060ZT°0 S| | vl S0'€0Z S| | 6¥'TT S |lv'oT) S| ErT  $[sEI8T § 19M0od 73 3143[1 2nanbiey | w
0001 T $|Lee S | 6S8TT'0 s €T €L S| | SY'IT CE $|Lee | 68LT S 9A12d00D 314393(3 PUBKBAOD| D
v $ ® S| vt $ | 0680T°0 N Z1 19002 S| | 9ETT S n $|L¥T S| SEEIT S S}0M D1|qNd 30 PIROg PUR||OH | W
SLET $ |{616000)  $|<SE $ | LTOZTO s| | 13 TEYET § | | E0'TT S|(6L€T) $|LSE  § | 9T08T $ 21439913 quinyL| 2
05°LT S | 6£500'0 s|sot $ oot $| | 0T v9'E6T S| | 96°0T $|608 $[SOT $|SC9ST $ Jaesadoo) 3139373 puejhiayd’ o
0071 $ | 861200 HEEG $ 006800 S| | 6 80'€6T $ | | €6°0T $| 4678 $)89F $|0SEET $ XICAD|IEYD | W
00'Z2Z S - S| 15°€ S | ST680°0 s| | 8 ST'06T $|  9.0T s| - $|IS€T S| BYEET S (99uiouUaN) 321AIDS DIqNd UISUOISIM | |
00'9T $ | 901000 slote $|9ss0T'0 S| | L LL'68T S| | vLOT $ 65T S |0T'€E $|veast $ SB9 214129|3 S| ANLSAL | O
0S°0T $ 818100 $|s62 S | 0E060°0 sl | -] vL98T § | | LSTOT S LTLT S| S6T 5|SPSET $ 199X / Auedwo) Jamod $91e15 UIYMON| |
8L8 $  00T000 $ | vEY $ | 8rL0T'0 s| | S 6E'9BT $ | | SSOT $/0ST S |vEY $|ZTTIT § Auedwe) uesip3 1039Q| |
0SvT $ | TLS10'0 $o0L S|or1800 S| | q TTLLT | | €0°0T $|85€T S|00L s|orzel § Add pueRaz| w
SZ'9 $ | 66500°0 S L¥6 S| Lvze00 5| | € TTELT S| | 086 S| 66 $|iv6 S| TLSET S Ue3|Yd|IAl BUBIPU/12MOd J14103[3 UBdLBWY | |
06'9T $ | O¥¥00'0 I s|oeeo0 S| | z 26'69T S| | 796 $|oge S| - $|089eT § Jamod 13 148N easpyd| w
9€'8 s | €2100'0 $ |98 $|0ss600 s | T 69'S9T $| | 86 $|S8T 5987 $|STert S s8uds JoqieH| w
|
Aupqeieay ¥2Sd LY S67Vd | @3y Adaug | juey leloL xey Alige|ieay 4JSd | S6Zvd ABJau3 IVIDHININDGD TIVINS
| 1
|
|

12MOd g 1Y3r] AnD assane. )

43



paumMQ J01saAU]| |
sjedppuny| w
saaResadooy| 2
|
uUBuBIsUl PaJap{suoD ! 3} asnD23q 3BID\2INS
WU MO} 3PN{IU] JOU 530P SISAIDUY "uopDWweul BUlllgG PTOZ J2qLUIa0aQ Ue Paspg "SagbuIsa tiDjuos ADW UoRRWIOUl 2104 JWOS "SpuaWLIndap
Buyig anjeedsal 0] 5,(1pU-a/51{D2 3UOYTE[a] PUD $3YSqamM AY[IN WoLf paulol1qo UolouLIoful a3ny AfUo asn [DUAIU] J0f 475101 Aq paipdald ajoN
| l
. S | oTZTO'0 $ | sT'61 S $ | 060T°0 HIN 132 S0°SOT'Z $| |STBIT S| - S| ST'6ET S| ST6T S| 00%LS S|0SESTT S V34 Auno) uoBeuoiug| o
000 $ | TZ800°0 $ | E0'LY S $ | 090T°0 sl ov 65€96T $| | STTIT $ | 000E S| Trve S|eoLy  5|s9TSF S| SE6ITT S ('d’N 183UAD) Jamod e|nsuluag Jaddn | 1
5 S = $ | 9zsy S $ | 0LIT'0 N 6€ 61'S88'T $ | | EL90T S| - $| - s|9zsr $|00S8E S |0SSYET $ 21302(3 e32Q 423y | 2
00'ET  $ | 045200 $ | 60°CT HIE $ | avzT0 sl 8E SL8SBT  $ | | TTSOT $ | 00'ET $ 8956 S |e60TT S| - S| oeTer'T $ | asuy,| W
S8'08  $ | 000100 $ | 99°0T $| szt $ | €260°0 s LE TY'T9LT ¢ | 066 S | S8°08 $ 00STT  $|990T $|SL'€6E S| SPTOOT § Aemdon| w
6.¥T  $|(eso000) | TIPSt I $|oseto  §| | 9€ STZ69T $| |8LGS6 $ |6LYT $ (299} s{ivsz §| - S| 98'655°T S| ('d"n usa159M) 2143993 UISUCDSIAA| |
00'€ST $| - $ | 000 S| s0'8tT $ | 69900 s 3 98'069T $ | TL£S6 § | 00'E9T s| - S| S0TE $ | SLTE9 S |SEEIL S siled |e3sA| w
I6'€ET  $ | 0ZTO00 S| ET'TT S| - $ | 6EET'0 sl vE TrEL9T § | 2L¥6 § | TE'ET $ | 08'€r S|ETIT § | - S| S8'6ES'T $ aaunedaN| w
LT $| - $ | LEYOOO'O S| ¥8'8 $ | gsoT'0 s £€ TUSY9T $ | | T0S6 $ | £9°LT s - S| TETT $ OVEOE | TLOTTT $ apcpuEAM | W
* $|(6T60000)  $ | €5°9bC $ | ocotT $ | e160'0 H [43 85'689T § | 18%6 §$| - $ (69'S0T) §$ | E€S'9vT S | 00'0SE S | £6'SSO'T $ 2119913 quInyL| o
0005  $ | 020000 $ | 8L's9 S| oLt $ | 18800 $| | € vE'SEIT § | L5T6 $ | 0008 $ ez $| 869 § 09TIv §|STEIOT S 1431 73 J231eM JO pieog Buisue]| w
000E S| ¥0STO'0 $ | €082 $ | 09T $ | LtL00 sh 0g E'EZ9T $ | 6816 S| O00°0E $96'7LT S |08 S| 009y $|SSvE8 S Jamod 18 B[] JO pJeog UIAEH puRID| W
000E S| 0620070 $  T0'sS $ | 006 $ | Tve0'0 s 62 TL'909T $ | | S6'06 $ | 00°0E $ | se'ee $|zo'ss $|OCOSIE $|OVZ8O'T S AB1au3 ssownsuo) | |
goorT $ - $  66'€8L $ | €08 $ oo S| 8T 06'89S'T $| | I8'88 $ | 0001 s = S| 66'€8T S| SO'T8T $|S0606 $ aARIado0D 21393 pUElIACD)| D
00'0L $  0BE00'C $ | 00T6T00'0 $  SL'ST $ | 8890°0 sl | Z 6E'89S'T $| | 8L'88 S| 00'0L $|S8vy S| L6TZ S| ST'TSS $|SSTEL S si3ams| w
0S'ST  $ | 09TZOC S| - $ | 801 $ 1 90L0°0 I 9z €O'EYST §| | 8€48 S| 05'ST Slovsvz | - S| svoge S| 06TIE $ lileysieiy| w
00'S.  $ | 06€Z0C $ | 08z $ | 00T $  S5¢0°0 $ | Sz SO'69Y'T  $| | ST'E8 S| 00'SL S|ssvir S|osgzz S|o006Y S| STELS S Jamod 3 31T [lPmo]| W
08'6TT $ | 80000 S | 99'ST $ | OEYT $ 1 9090°0 Il e TO'ESY'T S| | U828 S| 08'6IL S| L89% S 99°6T §|05'005 $|9€EL6S S Jejdemoq| w
0005 $ | 90T00C S| UYL S| 006 $ | S6L0°0 HE € YIUPYT S| | ¥6'T8 S| 000 S| BT'TT S vI'bL S| O00SIE $| LEVIE S se9 13 214309|3 25| anbsaid| 2
05'8L § | ¥IE000 S| vU'Ly s|oLot $ | €TL0°0 sl | [£4 LSLE'T S| | LETB $ | 0SBL S| TT98 S vy S| 0SvLE S S6'BI8 S 214323]3 AUNOD-LIL SHIOMAWCH| 2
00'0E  $|00900C S |SELY S | OEOT $ | 8€L00 S| | T 88'9EV'T S| | €E'T8 S | 00'0E 5 | 0069 S SELY S$|0S09E S oLsvE S Auedwo) Jamod euadly| |
00'06 5 | 965000 HERS S| Lsc S | vecoo sl 0z Sg'SOF'T S| | 85'6L S| 0006 S| vs'89 S|9LPS S |Sv89T S ESTPE S aaijesadoo) AB1aul 1semplNL| 2
L9'ET | 00TO00 S | vo've S| ovze $ | zTvoC sl 6T TTSSET S| | Iv'8L S| L9€T s|osttT S| vove S| 00VBL S |6SELY S Auedwo) uosip3 yonag |
- S |(869000)  § | 91000 $ | 00°€T $ | €620 S| | 8T €9'€8E'T $| | €L $| - S |lzzos) $|€98T S$|00SSF S| SETIE S Jamod 1B 3431 ananbley | w
0008 $ | TZ6TO0 slaLy S| 00 $ | 25900 S|l LT SE'BLE'T S| | T0BL $ | 0008 Slzeozz S|ory S| o00SYZ S| 69BYL S ABiaug soyetealn| o
050T S| 6£600°0 S| 00s $ | 05°0T S | 78900 sl | 9T | 08'9s€'T $| | 08'9L $|0S0T s|eszit  $|o00s S|oszoe S| zwveL S SHOM 21|qnd JO paeog d[eps|iiH | w
00'69  $ | 6ESOD'O S| L8891 S| sToT S | 99900 sl | ST OT'6PET $| | 9€9L $ | 0069 S| 6619 $|£89T $|SLBSE S |ET99L S aAReadoo) 214193(3 puelAdiayd| o
960 S| - S| ozoL S| 68'TT S | ¥590°0 s| | T OL'SVET $| LT9L $|960F S| - $|0Z0L S$|STITP S| ZTTSL S $InoTI5| W
00'0S S| 8I8T00 S| sLez S| s6' S | 54500 sl | €T TI'6EET S| 08'SL § | 0005 S| L060C $|SL6C S|STETE S |STTI9 S 199 / Auediuo) Jamod sa1eis Wayuon | |
00y S | 86TZ0°0 S| 89€ $ | 06'0T $ | 50500 s| | T VE'9EE'T $| ¥9SL § | 00TY s|iLzse §|89e s|osteE $|sL08s $ Xloavpeyd| w
00°ST  $ | 09800'0 s - $| s6'TT $ | 0650°0 s 1 1T 6E0ZET $| | LWL §|00ST $ | 06'86 $| - sl szesy $|058L9 $ Jamod 2 3ydn A assanel | w
0s'Zy ¢ |(zetoo0) S| 9TZTOOOD S | OB'ET S | 0T90°0 s| | 01 €8'88Z'T $| |s6TL §|o0sTY S (8T°ST) $|90F% $ 00€Esy S| 0S'T0L S d'319u399(3 M) Aeg| W
00'8T  $ | LELOO'O S | stz $ | 00'€T S | 8ES00 sl | 6 60'9LZ'T $ | E€TTL S| 00'ST S zLve $|vvez S 005y S| 0LBI9 S 5213|130 2M|qnd JO pJeog Jarempiod| w
00'€ET  $ | 0¥Z000 S| vs's §| - $ | ocoto s 8 T6°L9T'T $ | | LLTL § | OO0'ET $ | 09°LT S| vss sl - $ | 00°0ST'T § auoispe(s| w
66'0E S | O¥P000 g - §| - S| 71600 HIN L TZT86T'T S| |T8L9 $|660F $ | 0g08 § = S| - S| 08'8K0T S 1amod g 43N easjays| w
- $ | TLGTO0 $ | 0059 S| 00TT $ TEYOO S| 9 POY6T'T S| (6549 S| - $|o0%08T $ 0059 $|0098E $|S9S6Y S MdE puepaz| w
- $ | €2Zv000 s| - S| os'eT $ | 00S0°0 S| [ ELUT'T S| [ 1999 S| - s|zoeyr  § - S| osesy $|o0SLs S Juauiledaq sain SAYIN| W
ree S| - EAS S | zs'ot $ | 1850°0 sl v ESTLI'T $| |T€99 $| T1T'8E S| - $l9Lr0e $|o0T89E §ST899 S SHI0M 2|qnd 4O pieog pue||oH | W
00TE  §| - S| 99°€€ S| - S | £680°0 sl € SE'LST'T $| | 1§69 S| 00IE S| - §|99ee §| - $ | 8TLZOT S (IaUIWOUBY) IIALBS 1|qnd UISUOISIA |
St'LT § | 665000 S| e S| ess $ | £890°0 Sl 1 z SLSYT'T S| | 98F9 §| SPLT S| 68'89 S| e S| ST'66T §|L6S8L S ueBiydi euRlpU|/1aMOd 911339|F UedLaWY | |
TI'ET S| €2T000 S |98T s | oozt $ | sos0'0 S| 1 2LTE0'T S| | GBT9 S| TT'ET S| STyl HEEA $|o00ZF $|SL088 S sBupds JoqieH | W
|
ejleny ey ¥dd 2jey S67 vd puewaq ajey Adsaug Huey | IEoL xeL Aliqelieay Yo5d S62 Yd puewaq ABsoug IVIDHININGDD 39UV
|
| HT0T 19qWadaq - A3AINS 318y 3141993 uediypin
I 1amod g W31 A1) assanes ]

44



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2015

51 1910

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller Kivg
Date: February 17, 2015

Subject: Electric Fund Budget

Enclosed for your review is the proposed 2015-16 Electric Fund budget and six year forecasted
cash flow that will be discussed at the Regular Meeting scheduled for February 24, 2015,

ELECTRIC FUND BUDGET
Overall the fund remained relatively status quo with a few exceptions described below.

REVENUES

There is no proposed base rate increase in revenues; however, during the analysis of revenues it
was found the methodology used to calculate the power service cost recovery funds (“PSCR”)
was overcapturing on the fluctuation in wholesale purchase power costs. Therefore, staff is
implementing a new averaging formula beginning March 1, 2015 whereby twelve months of
actual power supply costs and kilowatt hours will be averaged instead of the PSCR unit price,
providing a more accurate pass through revenue amount. Staff will be proposing most likely a
credit for the PSCR as of March 1, 2015 to retro apply it to December 1, 2014 to provide a
neutral effect of the capture since the uncapping of the PSCR rate,

The amount of kWh’s used for projected 2014-15 retail sales was calculated by taking actual
sales through January 31, 2015 and averaging the past year’s billing consumption from February
1 through June 30. When compared to the forecasted wholesale purchases, it provided a little
over 2% percent line loss, well within expectations based on past history. The retail sales for the
2015-16 fiscal year was forecasted at a flat half percent increase over the 2014-15 fiscal year,
based on modeling performed by MPPA, which takes into consideration weather patterns
(heating and cooling days), economy, population characteristics, and past history consumption.

Staff recommends continuing with utilizing the MPPA Competitive Trust Fund. There are
sufficient funds until the end of the fiscal year June 30, 2016, at which that time the Fund will be
depleted.

45




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2015

The Merchandising and Jobbing increase reflects the costs contracted to be paid for by Munson
Hospital for the service installation of Cowell Family Cancer Center, The MISO revenue
increase reflects the addition of the funds being reimbursed for the East Hammond Substation
and East Transmission Line. Additionally, there is a FERC order, which a decision has not yet
been made to reduce the return on investment from 12.38% to 10.0%, and this reduction has
been included.

In conjunction with Utility Financial Solutions, staff will be working on implementing the
strategic goal of simplifying rates, looking at time of use rates, seasonal customers, and different
rates for customers inside/outside of the city limit during the summer/fall season with an
anticipated implementation date of January 1, 2016. The effects of these rate changes are not
presented in this budget, but will be provided to the Board at the time of presentation.

EXPENSES

To continue the goal of being more transparent with financial information, the wage, salaries and
related fringe benefits have been accounted for under these accounts instead of allocated to
different functions, such as overhead lines, load and dispatching. However, there are few cases
where allocations will still occur, such as reallocation to Kalkaska Combustion Turbine,
transmission department, energy optimization, and any wages and salaries that meet
capitalization criteria.

Generation expense decreased approximately $239K over prior year. In the purchased power
section, staff has added two new lines, Capacity Purchases and Bilateral Contracts. In the
current fiscal year, the utility was paying $.35 kW/month for approximately 20 MW deficient
capacity, approximately $80,000 and it was recorded under purchased power. In the upcoming
fiscal year, approximately 14 MW has been contracted for a purchase amount at $2.00 per
kW/month, while another 6 MW is expected to be purchased in the near future at a not to exceed
purchase amount of $4.00 kW/month. There may be an additional 1 MW that will have to be
purchased off the market with an expected price not to exceed $4.00 kW/month. The price for
capacity has significantly increased because the amount of coal plants planned to retire with no
replacements planned at this time.

Additionally, the Lansing Board of Water and Light contract is expiring as of December 31,
2015, this is being replaced with the line item Bilateral Contracts or firm energy purchases
through the MPPA Energy Services. The new contract price is at a lower rate than was paid to
Lansing.

Distribution expense overall increased $115K. Approximately $264k relates to increase in
salaries and wages which relates to an overall 1.5% wage increase and the capitalization
percentage decreasing from an overall 31% to 28%. Traffic signals decreased as it is expected
the materials for any new signals will be purchased by the City with labor for installation to be
reimbursed and recorded in reimbursements. The tools line item decreased as the tools necessary
for the BW-31 project were purchased in the current year and no further significant investments
in tools similar to this is expected. Vehicle Rentals in the prior year were incorrectly allocated
based on total cost rather than hourly rate causing the fluctuation from prior year to current year.

46




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2015

Transmission expense, customer accounting, and administration expense remained status
quo over last year.

Conservation and Public service, which accounts primarily for the Utility’s energy
optimization efforts and key accounts programs overall decreased as it is not expected the need
for future funds being allocated to the Chamber for the energy efficiency revolving loan fund.
The Navigant contract is expected to be fulfilled by the end of the fiscal year. Additionally, staff
has reduced the per kWh hour cost of energy optimization efforts from $.15 per kWh to $.14 per
kWh.

Reimbursements declined based on not budgeting for special assessments relating to street light
projects, Gain/loss on sale of fixed assets changed based on realizing the loss of the windmill
and no other significant assets with loss expected to be sold in the upcoming budget year.

CASH FLOW

Overall cash flow shows the Utility being in compliance with the Utility’s cash reserve policy.
Once actual capital improvements are incurred during the current year and partially through the
budget 2015-16 year, the Utility will need to evaluate if a minor base rate increase, planned in
the budget fiscal year 2016-17 will be necessary.

47




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT
201616 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses Summary

FY14M5 .

FY 14!15:

FY 15/16

COUFYAM3. FYA3M4 _
‘Actual . g Actual_ - " Budget - Projected Reguested
Operating Income: $ 31,809,664 % 35,202126 $ 36,426,200 $ 37,524,700 35,928,700
Operating Expenses:
Generation Expenses:
Capacity $ - $ - $ - 5 - 672,000
Purchased Power - Lansing BWL 7,224,557 6,079,198 7,366,600 5,646,000 3,348,800
Stoney Corners - Wind Energy 2,782,535 2,890,566 2,894,000 2,834,400 3,257,000
Combustion Turbine Power Cost 3,401,472 3,081,983 4,636,000 3,997,000 4,714,000
Campbell #3 Power Cost 5,241,651 5,372,167 4,995,000 4,820,000 4,580,000
Belle River #1 Power Cost 4,627,616 5,191,796 4,030,000 4,672,000 4,364,000
Landfill Gas - Granger Project 326,712 396,367 925,000 727,000 1,127,000
Other Generation Expenses 178,884 207,049 271,600 1,025,900 2,716,100
Total Generation Expenses 23,783,427 23,219,126 25,018,200 23,622,300 24,778,900
Distribufion Expenses:
Operations & Maintenance 3,493,024 3,356,752 3,860,700 3,734,000 3,976,150
Transmission Expenses:
Operations & Maintenance 366,978 299,449 339,800 341,400 359,300
Other Operating Expenses:
Metering & Customer Accounting 516,919 479,851 563,050 519,900 521,500
Conservation & Public Services 1,689,992 440,260 802,800 672,280 679,400
Administrative & General 959,602 763,148 856,700 815,900 901,800
Insurance 55,453 59,502 68,000 60,000 63,000
Depreciation Expense 1,878,890 2,027,184 2,132,000 2,100,000 2,150,000
City Fee 4,599,866 1,775,851 1,889,500 1,881,000 1,801,000
Total Other Operating Expenses 6,700,722 5,635,798 6,302,050 6,049,080 6,116,700
Total Operating Expenses 34,344,181 32,410,123 35,520,760 33,748,780 35,231,050
Operating Income/Loss $ (2,534,487) $ 2,882,003 $ 905,450 $ 3,777,920 697,650
Non Operating Revenues/{Expenses):
Non Operating Revenues (56,337} 1,149,156 634,600 441,950 456,750
Non Operating Expenses {4,333} 0 {360,000) {358,800) 0
Total Non Operating Revenue/(Exp} (60,670} 1,149,156 274,600 83,050 456,750
Net Income $ (2,595157) $ 4,031,169 § 1,180,050 $ 3,860,970 1,154,400




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2015-16 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY12M3  FY 1314 FY 14115 FY 14/15

FY 15/16
. Actual Actual Budget Projected Requested
OPERATING REVENUES:
Residential Sales $ 5,543,163 $ 6,382,044 § 6,600,000 $ 6,618,000 § 6,338,000
Commercial Sales 14,143,835 15,612,427 15,810,000 16,700,800 15,766,500
Industrial Sales 9,020,921 9,950,825 10,770,000 10,907,900 10,040,000
Pubiic Authority Sales 274,590 296,800 309,000 304,000 286,000
Street Lighting Sates 194,708 195,178 201,600 194,100 486,000
Yard Light Sales 77,197 79,551 79,900 80,000 82,000
Forfeited Discounts 56,978 57,695 58,000 60,000 60,000
Merchandise and Jobbing 40,647 43,443 65,000 114,000 187,000
Recovery of Bad Debts 108 188 200 200 200
Sale of Scrap 50,958 34,332 35,000 35,000 35,000
Miscellanecus Income 51,047 37,383 34,000 49,200 38,500
Refunds and Rebates 2,223 1,413 2,500 500 500
MISO Revenue 2,363,289 2,600,847 2,461,000 2,461,000 2,900,000
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 31,809,664 $ 35292126 $ 36,426,200 $ 37,524,700 § 35,928,700
OPERATING EXPENSES:
GENERATION-OPERATING & MAINTENANCE:
Salaries and Wages $ - $ - $ 63,500 § 131,600 § 125,400
Fringe Benefits - - 91,900 95,600 85,600
Wind Generation - Traverse 100,009 16,148 - “ .
Brown Bridge - - - . .
Wind Generation Farm - - - - -
Trap and Transfer 117 74 250 250 250
Union Street Fish Ladder 178 - 250 250 250
Operation Supplies 631 653 1,000 1,000 1,000
Capacity Purchases - - - - 672,000
Purchased Power - Lansing BWL 7,224,557 6,079,198 7,366,600 5,546,000 3,348,800
Stoney Corners - Wind Energy 2,782,535 2,890,566 2,894,000 2,834,400 3,257,060
Combustion Turbine Power Cost 3,401,472 3,081,983 4,536,000 3,997,000 4,714,000
Campbell #3 Power Cost 5,241,651 5,372,167 4,995,000 4,820,000 4,580,000
Belle River #1 Power Cost 4,627,616 5,191,796 4,030,000 4,672,000 4,364,060
Landfill Gas - Granger Project 326,712 396,367 925,000 727,000 1,127,000
M72 Wind Turbine - . - 17,500 42,000
Bitateral Contracts - 3,345 - 641,000 2,357,000
Total Purchased Power 23,604,543 23,015,422 24,746,600 23,254,900 24,461,800
Puchased Power Cost as % of Sales 80.7% 70.78% 73.28% 66,82% 74.79%
Coal Dock 13,895 8,075 2,500 2,500 2,500
Communications 307 421 500 1,600 1,500
Meal Payments - - - 206 200
Safety 13,350 2,765 5,000 3,500 3,500
Tools - 38 500 500 500
Professional and Contractual 46,276 174,219 95,000 104,000 68,000
Transportation - - - 11,000 11,500
Professional Development 3,521 1,311 2,000 2,000 2,000
Uniforms - - 2,200 2,600 2,500
Vehicle Rentals - - 7,000 11,000 12,400
Miscellaneous 600 “ - - -
Total Generation O & M 23,783,427 23,219,126 25,018,200 23,622,300 24,778,900

49




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
201516 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

UUEY12M3 -

RY 1314

" FY 14115 FY 14115 FY 15/16
o -iActual - Actual ‘Budget .~ Projected Requested
DISTRIBUTION OPERATION & MAINTENANCE:
Salaries and Wages - - 1,300,400 1,608,800 1,550,600
Fringe Benefits - . 1,086,500 1,054,200 1,100,400
Office Supplies 4,143 4,404 4,700 4,700 4,700
Operation Supplies 53,798 36,281 54,000 36,000 40,000
Utilities 49,703 57,611 §1,300 52,000 53,000
Meals and Payments - - 4,800 4,800 4,800
Communications 52,820 79,928 16,700 21,000 24,000
Software and Hardware - 1,750 122,500 102,700 151,000
Supervision and Maintenance 202,966 618,832 - - -
Substation 173,653 109,084 113,900 71,400 123,900
Overhead Lines 423,685 418,792 160,000 173,000 175,800
Load and Dispatching 433,298 455,550 “ - -
Storm Damage Contingency 33,552 118,025 50,000 - 50,000
Underground Lines 217,698 229,128 50,000 47,000 28,000
Customer Installations 16,822 21,334 - - -
Electric Meters 47,476 76,602 12,000 40,000 12,000
Street Lighting 288,451 317,487 220,000 227,000 244,000
Traffic Signal Oper. & Maint. 186,697 122,135 70,000 15,000 17,000
Radio Equipment 1,146 5,627 2,500 2,000 2,500
Plant & Structures 219,019 249,074 90,000 77,000 85,000
Shop Labor 142,129 162,496 - - -
Safety 78,917 79,763 47,000 40,000 45,000
Tools 20,480 14,242 70,000 60,000 20,000
Uniforms - - 12,500 16,000 16,150
Professional and Contractual 47,614 37,064 95,800 91,900 95,800
Rent Expense 2,588 1,536 2,600 2,000 2,000
Professional Development 95,301 138,936 50,400 43,000 66,000
Printing and Publishing 1,861 1,301 4,000 3,000 3,000
Transportation - - 37,400 36,000 35,000
Vehicle Rentals - - 131,800 25,000 21,000
Miscellaneous 350 332 500 500 500
Inventory Adjustments {63) 8,548 - 10,000 5,000
Total Distribution © & M 3,493,024 3,355,752 3,860,700 3,734,000 3,976,150
TRANSMISSION OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE:

Salaries and Wages - - 211,200 212,200 219,500
Fringe Benefits - - 5,000 5,000 3,800
Supervision & Maintenance 165,659 109,335 - - -
Substation 27,693 8,646 23,600 15,000 25,000
Overhead Lines 1,726 {1,007) 5,000 11,006 10,000
Load and Dispatching 91,350 84,001 - - -
MISO Transmission 26,164 25,425 28,000 25,000 27,500
Teols - - 3,000 - 3,500
Professional and Contractual - - 5,000 5,000 5,000
Miscellaneous-MPPA Transmission Project 55,396 73,049 59,060 68,200 65,000
Total Transmission O & M 366,978 299,449 339,800 341,400 359,300

50




City of Traverse City, Michigan

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2015-16 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 12113

FY 13/14

_ FY 14/15 FY 14/15 FY 156/16
UActual oo Actual Budget Projected Requested
METERING & CUSTOMER ACCOUNTING:
Salaries and Wages 255,586 237,269 275,200 277,800 281,500
Fringe Benefits 119,846 132,343 130,900 126,300 123,000
Office Supplies 2,483 2,563 4,500 4,000 4,000
Communications 365 232 400 400 400
Meal Payments 330 a0 500 200 200
Safety 24 570 3,200 3,000 3,200
Uniforms 2,629 588 3,600 3,600 3,600
Professional and Confractual 39,467 10,805 29,000 11,900 12,000
Postage 29,542 28,332 34,600 32,900 35,000
Uncollectable Accounts 27,856 29,816 30,000 16,000 106,000
Collection Costs 1,673 £95 2,000 2,000 2,000
Data Processing 18,769 20,718 20,500 21,100 22,000
Transportation 4,657 3,722 5,500 4,200 4,200
Professional Development 1,374 610 7,000 3,500 6,500
Printing and Publishing 3,524 2,040 5,500 4,000 4,000
Vehicle Rentals 8,001 6,904 - 6,500 7,400
Miscellaneous 993 2,654 1,250 2,500 2,600
Total Customer Accounting 516,919 479,851 553,050 519,900 521,500
CONSERVATION & PUBLIC SERVICES:
Salaries and Wages - - 59,900 47,830 53,000
Fringe Benefits - - 24,400 28,450 29,900
Professional and Contractual 20,788 2,120 25,000 30,000 30,000
Contract Labor - Energy Optimization 100,000 - 160,000 70,000 -
Public Service & Communications 8,486 12,597 21,500 21,500 44,000
In-Kind Community Services 38,861 50,564 - 500 500
Community Investment Fund 1,009,000 - - - -
Professional Development - - 5,000 1,000 5,000
Vehicle Rentals - - 15,000 5,000 7,500
Increased Energy Optimization Efforts - - - - -
PA295 Energy Optimization Compliance 521,857 374,979 492,000 470,000 $09,500
Total Conservation & Public Services 1,689,992 440,260 802,300 672,280 679,400
ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL.:
Salaries and Wages 461,899 294,004 356,000 356,700 367,300
Fringe Benefits 163,923 133,115 163,000 163,200 201,300
Office Supplies 11,427 1,177 9,000 8,000 9,000
Communications 7,144 12,636 4,500 3,000 3,500
Software and Hardware - - 60,000 46,000 22,200
Fees and Per Diem 55,627 64,362 65,000 65,000 67,000
Board Related Expenses 4,228 11,678 15,000 5,000 156,000
Professional & Contractual 167,648 141,522 80,000 84,200 106,300
Legal Services 66,563 53,312 60,000 55,000 60,000
Employee Appreciation 4,925 9,129 9,200 9,500 9,700
City Fee 1,599,866 4,775,851 1,889,500 4,881,000 1,801,000
Transportation 1,517 1,846 2,500 2,500 2,500
Professional Development 6,081 15,232 20,000 11,300 27,000
Printing & Publishing 6,034 4,798 6,000 5,000 6,000
Insurance and Bonds 55,453 59,502 68,000 60,000 63,000
Miscellaneous 2,586 337 6,500 2,500 5,000
Depreciation Expense 1,878,890 2,027,184 2,132,000 2,100,000 2,160,000
Total Administrative and General 4,493,811 4,616,685 4,946,200 4,856,900 4,915,800

51




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2015-16 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY42M3 0 0 EY13M4, - FY 14015

_ ‘ _ FY 14115 FY 161186
CoActual oo cActual Budget Projected Requested
Total Operating Expenses 34,344,161 32,410,123 35,520,750 33,746,780 35,231,050
Operating income / {Loss) $ (2,534,487) $ 2,882,003 § 905,450 $ 3,777,920 $ 697,650
NON OPERATING REVENUES/{EXPENSES):
Rents and Royalties $ 23635 §$ 47,282 $ 45,000 $ 49,350 $ 44,350
Pole Rentals 41,593 35,921 36,000 44,000 34,600
Reimbursements 163,980 616,140 353,600 98,600 102,800
Interest & Dividend Earnings (285,545) 402,872 200,000 250,000 260,000
Gain/(Loss} on Sale of Fixed Assels (4,333} 46,931 {360,000) (358,900} 25,000
Total Non Operating Revenue/{Expensos) {60,670) 1,149,156 274,600 83,050 456,750
NET INCOMEHLOSS) $ (2,595,187} $ 4,031,159 § 1,180,050 $ 3,860,970 § 1,154,400

52




(505'685) 600°T6L 666'6E5°C T8TLS9'Y 89Y'vL9'9 890°£9Z°CT £86°TY9'TT Joue|eg JUIUIISIAUY 3 ysed pajeuibsapun 13 paAIIsaun
000°086'6 000'ZT6’6 00070586 0000086 000°0ZL6 000°085'6 000°0S'6 dUL(RG JUIWISIAUT 1 YSED PRAIISIYH
S6'06E6 600'¢02'0T 66663221 TYTULSY'YT 89V'P6E9T 890°LY8 TZ £86'160'TZ QouR|Rg SJUAURSIAUL 1§ ysed Buisop

| | | |
600'v02°0T 666°68E'ZT TSTLSY'YT 89Y'Y6E'9T 890°LY8'TT £86'T60°T TSE'BLLIOT ureieg SJUIWISIAU] 1§ yse) buiuado
(PTS'ETET) (686'589'T) (282°£90°7) (£81°£867T) (009°Z5t'S) 0£69ET TEO'ETE (-) IPya/sniding moyysed
| | ,
T66'LSEOY 7 S£8'S0E'0v vZS'L9T 0V TL9'TTL'6E 7 0S0'8E8'TY 08L'0£8'LE TIST'8TT9E ﬁ sjuswied |e30L
000'0SS"¥ 000°002'S 000°058'S 000'086'S 000°45'8 000'¥819 ZIE'SKL'S SjUaSIAUT [eyded

094’6061 9T 116'T 09£'€48'T 0Z0°Z£8'T 000°108'1 000'188'T 168'SLL'T a4 A0
S09'E 91T LbL'0L 09€'69 000'89 000'09 20565 oueInsul
S2L'0L6 169156 1£0°€E6 9ELVT6 008'968 006’518 BPT'ESL [243UDD 3§ JARRASIUIWPY
POV'SEL 586°0¢L 8b890L 886'769 00b'6£9 08Z'TL9 0970kt 32AIBS DlIqnd 7§ UORRAIISUOD
88195 0ZH'ESS 695°TYS 0E6°TES 005°12S 006'61S 158'6L0 BuRUNCIDY JAUICISND g BULRIB
816'99€ 762'18¢ 918'ELE 98'99E 00£'65E 00F'THE 6’662 2sUAXT UC|SS|WSURI L
£I6'C0EY TIS'6IT'Y 98L'9ET Y ££9'550" 0ST'9L6°E 000'PEL'E TSL'SSE'E asusdxg UoRNQISIq
BLY'1Z8'9T £95'562"9¢C 896'64L'ST 8LY'PLT'ST 006'BLL'YT 00€'Z29'eC 9ZT'6TT'EC 95UddX3 UORERIDUID

sjuWAed
8LY'tP0'6E | 988‘6T9'8E ZYZ'00T'8E Y8Y'S8LLE 0SP'S8E'9E 05£°£96'LE 78T TPY'9E s3d1ad0y |01
1066t 20L'v8k £02'SLt | 588’59t 052'95k 050°Ebt 98T'6¥T'T sanuaAsy bupesado uoN
s8L'1Zr's 169'¥SE'E z16'g8e’e veb'PeT's 00Z'TST'E 006'58£4'Z T0£'64L'C sonuaady bupesRdo J8Y10
£6C'821'SE 886'094'FE LTT'9ER'FE SL1'S60'vE 005'£94'2E 008'8€LbE 528'915'2¢€ SADIAIBS J0) SaBJey)
s3diacoy
|
0Z/610Z 6T/8T0Z 8T/LT0Z LT/9T0Z | 9T/STOZ ST/PT0Z YI/ETOZ |14RRA 2951
ejewnsy W ajewns3y fjewns3y A ajewn}sy | 186png pajosiold 1enyoy

31SE29104 MO[d Yysed

§ aur

¥ aur

gaun

zeur

L aur

53



